
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE BY REMOTE VIDEO CONFERENCING VIA - ZOOM 

 
ON TUESDAY 17 OCTOBER 2023 AT 2.30 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
TUESDAY 17 OCTOBER 2023

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 19th 

September 2023   
 

3 - 24 

2   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

25 - 29 

3   Finglas Area Report, Pat Teehan, Area Manager   
 

30 - 38 

4   Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 
That the Manager agrees to investigate the possibility of placing a Basketball 
court adjacent to the Johnstown Park and considers putting forward a Sports 
Capital Grant funding application at the next opportunity. 
 

 

5   Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

That this Area Committee agrees that the delay in providing an all-weather 
training facility at Tolka Valley Park has been unnecessary. We further call on the 
Management to engage with all stakeholders and investigate the potential for an 
all-weather playing facility at Farnham Park. 

 

 

6   Notification of proposed variation no.4 to the Dublin City Development Plan 2022-
2023 relating to SDRA 3 - Finglas Village Environs and Jamestown Lands to 
incorporate the approved Jamestown Master Plan 2023   
 

39 - 41 

7   Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O'Reilly, Area Manager   
 

42 - 53 

8   With reference to the proposed grant of a Short Term Business Letting of two 
amalgamated office units at ground floor level, Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun 
Dublin 11.   
 

54 - 56 

9   Community Grants Scheme and Informal Adult Education Scheme 2023   
 

57 - 63 

10   Public Domain Report, Robert Ingram Public Domain Officer   
 

64 - 66 



 

11   Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Report    
 

67 - 76 

12   Traffic Service Request, Status Report   
 

77 

13   Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting   
 

78 - 81 

 



NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY 18th September 2023 
 
 
Item 1      Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 18th July 
                2023. 
 
                 Order: Agreed  
 
Item 2      Questions to the Area Manager. 
  
Q.1 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to look at arranging signage at the entrance of (details supplied) 
on Balcurris Road, a lot of cars park here and cars are speeding as people are trying 
to leave the car park.  
 
Reply 
The Area Engineer will need to assess the entrance at (details supplied) in order to 
recommend what traffic measure are necessary. Dublin City Council cannot install any 
traffic measures in the (details supplied) car park as it is private property. DCC can 
only install traffic measures on roads and footpaths that are in charge by DCC. 
 
 

Contact:  Joao Brescia – North West Area Engineer. 

  Tel:  01 222 2523 
 Email: joao.brescia@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.2 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager for an update on the progress made regarding (details supplied) 
moving closer to Ballymun  
 
Reply 
The City Valuer’s Office remain in negotiations with (details supplied) for the lease to 
them of a site north of Balbutcher Lane (Southern part of site No. 31 in Ballymun 
LAP).  Upon agreement of terms with the club a report will be brought to the North 
West Area Committee for approval. 
 

Contact: Bláthnaid Conlon, Senior Staff Officer, Property Disposals.  
Tel:  01- 222 3408  
Email:  blathnaid.conlon@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.3 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager for an update on the improvements works for (details supplied)   
 
Reply 
Park Services completed upgrade of pathways in (details supplied) early Q2 this 
year. 
Parks met onsite with appointed contractor for construction of reflective garden 
recently with works set to commence this week. Likewise, arrangements have been 
made for playground construction to commence within the coming weeks once final 

Page 3

mailto:joao.brescia@dublincity.ie
mailto:blathnaid.conlon@dublincity.ie


equipment orders have been secured. Gym equipment station will be the final 
element to be installed following playground works. 
 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, Executive Parks and Landscape Officer, NW Parks 
District. 
Tel:   222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
 
Q.4 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to power wash the (detailed supplied) 
 
Reply 
The Public Domain Team will request the locations of (details supplied) to be power 
washed. 
 
Contact:          Robert Ingram, Public Domain Officer    
Tel:              01 2225496    
Email:              Robert.ingram@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.5 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager when will the Affordable Housing Schemes be advertised in 
(details supplied) 
 
Reply 
Under the Affordable Housing Act 2021, local authorities need to publicly advertise 
when an Affordable Housing Scheme becomes available.  In advance of the date 
when the particular dwellings are scheduled to be completed, the Council will 
advertise the availability of the dwellings in at least one newspaper circulating within 
the administrative area and on Dublin City Council’s website. 
 
The advertisement will include details regarding the location, number and type of 
dwellings to be sold, their price, the income limits for eligibility, as well as how and 
when to apply.  
 
Planning permission has not yet been secured for affordable housing on the (details 
supplied)  site however work is due to start on Saint Joseph’s site in early 2024. 
Dublin City Council is developing our Affordable Housing website and will advertise 
all affordable homes on this site.  
 
 
Contact:  Sara Bermingham, Administrative Officer  
Tel:   01 222 2040 
Email:  sara.bermingham@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.6 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager how long is the An Bord Pleanála appeal likely to delay the 
housing project in (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
The estimated date for a decision on this appeal is end of Dec 2023/Jan 2024, with 
construction to commence shortly thereafter, the appeal to Bord Pleanála has delayed 
this project by approximately six months.    
 

Page 4

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:Robert.ingram@dublincity.ie


 
Contact:    Michelle Robinson, Senior Executive Officer     
Tel:   01 222 6114     
Email:  michelle.robinson@dublincity.ie: 

  
Q.7  Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager are the security cameras operating in Ballymun and how they 
are being used to tackle illegal dumping. 

 
  
Reply 
Waste Management Services have currently no security cameras operating in 
Ballymun to tackle illegal dumping a further update will issue directly to the Councillor 
in due course. 
 
 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie     

 
Q.8 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to prune the trees in (details supplied)  
 
 
Reply 
Park Services carried out a significant amount pruning works to trees in (details 
supplied) recently. If there is a specific tree within the estate, Park services can 
inspect and add it to our Tree Care Programme should any works be deemed 
necessary. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, Exec Parks and Landscape Officer, NW Parks 
District. 
Tel:   222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.9 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager for an update on the Tree Replacement Programme in (details 
supplied) 
 
 
Reply 
Park Services have a number of location listed for tree replacement. Trees will be 
replaced on a multi annual basis as tree pits become available. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.10 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to arrange clean up around (details supplied)  
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services will have the above mentioned location cleaned by the 
middle of September 2023. 

Page 5

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie     

 
Q.11 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager for details of Rent arrears in Ballymun. 
 
 
Reply 
The approximate rent arrears for Ballymun is €4,782,667.67 plus additional €17,348 if 
you include the Shanliss and Oldtown areas.   
 
 
Contact:  Margaret McGrane, Area Housing Officer   
Tel:       0863808187  
Email:       Jackie.oreilly@dublincity.ie  

 
Q.12 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for an inspection of the footpaths on Ferndale Road 
in particular the cul de sac between numbers 3 and 18 where the paths are in need 
of attention. Can any repairs be carried out as soon as possible. 
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143622) has been passed to the local engineer who 
will inspect this issues.  
 
A significant number of repairs have been carried out in the area associated to the 
2022 & 2023 Works Programmes to reduce the overall number of defects. This area 
will be considered as part of the 2024 Works Programme. 
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.13 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to have a look at boundary wall dividing 13-24 Graigue Court 
and Crannoge Road. Cracks have appeared in the wall and it doesn't look safe. 
Children use this location as a play area. 
 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance will examine the matter and revert back with a detailed reply to  
Councillor Connaghan. 
 
 
Contact:  Clive Ahern, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance. 
Tel:  2223517 
Email:  clive.ahern@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.14 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to reinstate gaps in the railings at the Hopscotch Playground at 
the rear of 2 Crannoge Road. 
 
 

Page 6

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:Jackie.oreilly@dublincity.ie


Reply 
Housing Maintenance will examine the matter and revert back to Councillor 
Connaghan with further details. 
 
Contact:  Clive Ahern, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance. 
Tel:  2223517 
Email:  clive.ahern@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.15 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the replacement of the boiler at (details supplied) 
the tenant here is a carer and has 2 kids with special needs. He has regular issues 
with this boiler which is in place for 23 years. He informs me that the contractors 
have recommended on several occasions that the boiler needs to be replaced. Can 
you arrange this please. 
 
 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance Heating Section can confirm that this boiler replacement has 
been approved and the contractor will be in touch with the tenant to arrange installation 
shortly. 
 
Contact:  Clive Ahern, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance. 
Tel:  2223517 
Email:  clive.ahern@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.16 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the footpaths adjacent to (details supplied) be 
resurfaced please. There are lots of elderly residents in this area and the footpaths 
need to be resurfaced to prevent trips. 
 
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143623) has been passed to the local Inspector 
who will inspect this issues.  
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.17 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the footpath at (details supplied) to be re-instated. 
The footpath here is in really bad condition and is a serious trip hazard.  
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143624) has been passed to the local Inspector 
who will inspect this issues.  
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie  

 
Q.18 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on footpath repairs at (details 
supplied) where the resident has been reporting same for over a year now. 

Page 7



 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services has inspected this location. Job number 41122396 has 
been scheduled when a works crew is available in the area. At present there is a 
large backlog of repairs outstanding which we are working through.  
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Q.19 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the clearing of the green on Westwood Avenue. A 
large branch came off a tree a while back and has not been removed. The 
overgrowth at the side of houses is becoming a magnet for dumping also. 
 
Reply 
Parks Services have added this to local works schedule for clearance. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.20 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for an inspection of (details supplied) with regards to 
the continued use of a plug in electric heater. Can the Manager say whether this is 
standard practice or whether this situation needs to be upgraded 
 
 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance will examine the matter and revert back with a detailed reply to 
Councillor Connaghan 
 
Contact:  Clive Ahern, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance. 
Tel:  2223517 
Email:  clive.ahern@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.21 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to see if it is possible to accommodate a 7 or 9 a side pitch in 
Mellows Park and also Northway Park where there seems to be space available. 
 
Reply 
Parks Services will review this proposal taking into consideration other current 
allocations and in the context of ongoing developments in the area. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.22 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to provide a report on waste bin collection frequency in the 
Northwest Area. Driving around recently and there seems to be a lot of bins 
overflowing and is there big belly bins being considered as replacement in any areas. 
 
 

Page 8

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


 
Reply 
Waste Management Services have the litter bins on the main thoroughfares and 
shop fronts emptied two or three times a day on a daily basis. Litter bins in residential 
areas are emptied once a day, five days a week, Monday to Friday. We are not 
installing any further big belly bins at this stage. 
 
 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie     

 
Q.23 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair of the dishing at (details   
supplied)  
 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services has inspected this location. Job number 41165675 has 
been scheduled when a works crew is available in the area. At present there is a 
large backlog of repairs outstanding which we are working through.  
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie  

 
Q.24 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to outline if any measures are proposed to deal with speeding 
on (details supplied) Speeding and rat running on (details supplied) is worsening, 
particularly when motorists are avoiding the Beneavin traffic lights at peak times, are 
there any traffic calming measures proposed. 
 
Reply 
The Area Engineer has no funding available for traffic calming measures on the 
aforementioned road for the remainder of 2023. 
 
(details supplied) 

1. For the most part, there is on-street parking which is effectively acts as 
traffic calming by physically narrowing the carriageway and reducing 
drivers forward visibility. 

2. (details supplied) is a narrow  residential road the tree-lined appearance 
of the road  creates an enclosed nature to the area which further 
enhances traffic calming 

3. (details supplied) is covered by the 30 km/h Slow Zone sign, indicating 
the lower speed limit the area is a Home Zone/Slow Zone, which warns 
motorists that it is a residential area and to expect children. The Area 
Engineer does not recommend the provision of extra traffic calming 
measures at this location. 

 
If residents observe instances of drivers speeding these instances should be referred 
to the local Gardai for enforcement 
 
Contact: Gerry McEntagart – North City Executive Engineer. 
 Tel:                  01-222-5365. 
Email:  gerald.mcentagart@dublincity.ie 

Page 9

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:gerald.mcentagart@dublincity.ie


 
Q.25 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair of the footpath at (details 
supplied) as the path is very uneven and cracked, there is a large rise in one part due 
to tree roots. 
 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services has inspected this location. Job number 41111315 has 
been scheduled when a works crew is available in the area. At present there is a 
large backlog of repairs outstanding which we are working through.  
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Q.26 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the repair of the footpath at (details 
supplied) It is very broken and uneven 
 
 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services has inspected this location. Job number 41141106 has 
been scheduled when a works crew is available in the area. At present there is a 
large backlog of repairs outstanding which we are working through.  
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.27 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to outline if any upgrades to the footpaths are planned for 
(details supplied)  
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143622) has been passed to the local engineer who 
will inspect this issues.  
 
A significant number of repairs have been carried out in the area associated to the 
2022 & 2023 Works Programmes to reduce the overall number of defects. This area 
will be considered as part of the 2024 Works Programme. 
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Q.28 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to outline if the dishing at (details supplied) is on a list for repair  
 
Reply 
There was currently no works scheduled for (details supplied) 
 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143629) has been passed to the local Inspector 
who will inspect the issues.  

Page 10



 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q. 29 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the inspection of the tree at (details 
supplied)  
 
Reply 
This is a mature purple plum was inspected and was added to our Tree Care 
Programme for some structural pruning. These works will be completed in the 
coming weeks. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.30 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the inspection of (details supplied) as 
cars are frequently parked on both sides of the road, making access to driveways 
and walking on the paths difficult 
 
Reply 
The Parking Enforcement Inspector has reviewed these streets and Dublin Street 
Parking Services will be asked to issue warnings initially for footpath parking. The 
Council is aware that residents of streets that are narrow have difficulties parking and 
have no option but to park on footpaths to avoid blocking the roadway.  However, it is 
illegal to park on a footpath and enforcement action may be necessary if vehicles are 
causing obstruction to footpath users. If residents are experiencing obstructions to their 
driveways, they may contact Dublin Street Parking Services directly at 01 6022500 or 
info@dsps.ie. 
 
Contact:  Linda McDonald, Acting Parking Enforcement Officer 
Tel:   01 222 2238 
Email :  linda.mcdonald@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.31 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to confirm if any pruning of the bushes on the green at (details 
supplied) is planned 
 
 
Reply 
Parks Services have this area of shrubbery at (details supplied) listed on our 
autumn/winter Shrubbery Maintenance Programme to be pruned back. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.32 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to outline if any pavement repairs are planned at (details 
supplied)  
 

Page 11

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:linda.mcdonald@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


 
Reply 
In relation to the footpaths significant repairs were carried out in the area of 
Cedarwood Road as part of the North West Civil Works Programme 2017, through to 
early 2018. Further repairs were carried out to the adjacent Oakwood Park area as 
part of the 2023 programme to reduce the overall defect in the area.  
 
Currently, there are no planned works for the Cedarwood Road cul-de-sac. 
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Q.33 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to confirm if weeding will take place at the green on (details 
supplied) 
 
Reply 
The Public Domain Team will request the location on (details supplied) for manual 
weed removal. 
 
 
Contact:          Robert Ingram, A/Public Domain Officer    
Tel:              01 2225496    
Email:              Robert.ingram@dublincity.ie  

 
Q.34 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the reinstatement and repair of the 
playground in (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
Parks Services continue to routinely repair and maintain remaining play items in this 
playground. Ongoing vandalism at this location makes it very difficult to make any 
obvious improvement on the play space. Park Services have listed your request for 
further review taking into consideration other ongoing development proposals for the 
park. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.35 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the inspection of the very large tree at (Details 

supplied) with a view to a severe prune or replacement.  

Page 12

mailto:Robert.ingram@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Reply 
Park Services inspected the tree outside (details supplied) and was found to be in a 
healthy condition with no other works recommended at this time. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.36 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager if he will consider putting a ramp in at (details supplied) for 
wheelchair and buggy users  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143636) has been passed to the local engineer who 
will inspect this item and consider the suitability of a dishing for pedestrians at this 
location.  

 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
 

Page 13

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


Q.37 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to review the insulation, windows and doors at (details supplied)  

 
Reply 
This dwelling previously received wall insulation (cavity pump) and attic insulation in 
2014 and therefore the insulation works are complete under the EERP Programme.  
The double glazed PVC windows have had seven new double glazed units fitted and 
new rubber seals installed, as well as eight new handles and five pairs of 16” hinges 
and were all operating as they should. These works were carried out by a specialist 
window contractor. 
 
The local Housing Maintenance Depot reports that a new back door and frame and a 
new front door and frame were ordered from our Joinery Workshop on the 
18/1/23, with a lead in time of approximately 20 weeks. 
 
Contact:  Clive Ahern, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance. 
Tel:  2223517  
Email:  clive.ahern@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.38 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the removal and cutting back of shrubbery at 
(details supplied) as it is blocking some of the pathway. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reply 
Park Services have listed this shrubbery for removal. These works will be completed 
in the coming weeks as local schedule allows. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.39 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager for a review of the public lighting at (details supplied) 
 
 
Reply 
A lighting assessment has been carried out on the public lighting at/near bus stop no 
(details supplied) The City Council accepts that additional/improved lighting should 
be provided. It is presently exploring a few options how this can be provided 
economically with a view to carrying out improvement works this year. 
 
 

Page 14

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


Contact:  Seamus MacSweeney    
Tel:   086 8343154     
Email:  seamus.macsweeney@dublincity.ie 
 

Q.40 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager for the inspection and removal of the dead tree at (details 

supplied)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Reply 
Park services have listed this tree for removal. These works will be completed in the 
coming weeks as local schedule allows. 
 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.41 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the public consultation and plans for the 
5 arm junction in Finglas Village, including an updated timeline.  
 
Reply 
The Rapid Build Options Report as required by the NTA for the Finglas Village  
Improvement Scheme is being advanced for the scheme, the report is expected to be 
completed by the end of September 2023.  The report will then be considered by 
Active Travel and the NTA, it may have an impact on the design of the scheme.  As 
soon as the impacts of the report are known the Elected Members will be updated on 
the scheme and the timeline. 

 
Contact: Andy Walsh, Executive Manager, Active Travel Programme Office.  
Tel:  01 2222020 
Email:  andy.walsh@dublincity.ie  

 

Q.42 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager for the inspection and removal of the dead tree at (details 
supplied) 

Page 15

mailto:seamus.macsweeney@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:andy.walsh@dublincity.ie


 
Reply 
Park Services have listed this tree listed for removal on our contracted tree work list. 
All contracted tree work is carried out on a prioritised basis subject to available 
budget. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.43 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to provide a follow up to question 59 of the Dublin City Council 
monthly meeting in July 2023, as to when the works will commence on clearing the 
very overgrown shrubbery.  
 
“Question to the Chief Executive Council Meeting 3 rd July 2023 
Q.59 COUNCILLOR KEITH CONNOLLY 
CRES To ask the Chief Executive to arrange for the cutting back of the very 
overgrown 
shrubbery at the entrance to (details supplied). 
Details: As you enter the housing (details supplied) CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPLY: 
Parks services will arrange for an inspection of the area at (details supplied) and 
report any necessary work to local contractor for attention.” 
 
Contact: Stephen Groome, Exec Parks and Landscape Officer, NW Parks 
Tel: 222 3395 
Email: parks@dublincity.ie 
 
Reply 
Parks Services have highlighted this area with the local landscape maintenance 
supervisor for his attention and prioritisation during autumn/winter Shrubbery 
Maintenance Programme. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.44 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager for a review of the speeding signage at (details supplied) with a 

view to increasing the amount of signage/ making people more aware of the speed 

limit.  

Reply 
(details supplied) is covered by the 30 km/h Slow Zone signage, which indicates the 
lower speed limit and warns motorists that it is a residential area and to expect children. 
This sign is provided at the entrance of the housing state. During the site inspection, 
no visibility issues were observed. 
Therefore, additional signage is not recommended at this location to avoid a 
proliferation of signage. Speeding should be reported to An Garda Síochána. 
 
 

Contact:  Rossana Camargo, Executive Engineer, City Centre Transport 

Tel:  01 222 6453 
 Email: rossana.camargo@dublincity.ie 

Page 16

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


 
Q.45 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager to give an update on the upgrade to the five-arm junction in 
Finglas and provide a timeline for completion. 
 
Reply 
The Rapid Build Options Report as required by the NTA for the Finglas Village 
Improvement Scheme is being advanced for the scheme, the report is expected to be 
completed by the end of September 2023.  The report will then be considered by 
Active Travel and the NTA, it may have an impact on the design of the scheme.  As 
soon as the impacts of the report are known the Elected Members will be updated on 
the scheme and the timeline. 
 
Contact: Andy Walsh, Executive Manager, Active Travel Programme Office.  
Tel:  01 2222020 
Email:  andy.walsh@dublincity.ie  

 
Q.46 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager to clean up and improve the look of the recycling area beside 
the new Finglas Library and ensure that it is properly maintained 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services will ensure everything possible is done to maintain and 
improve look of the above mentioned recycling area. 
 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie     

 
 
 
Q.47 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager to increase the level of cleaning in Finglas Village and the 
immediate surrounding area, including slip roads, tree pits and ensure the regular 
emptying of bins 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services will ensure that Finglas Village is cleaned and bins 
there emptied regularly on a daily basis. We will monitor the immediate surrounding 
area and have cleaning carried out when necessary. 
 
 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie     

 
Q.48 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager if improvements to the cycle paths from Finglas to Phibsborough 
can be carried out on an interim basis pending the approval of the Bus Connects 
Plans, as cyclists report that the existing cycle paths have become more eroded and 
more dangerous for them to use, which risks turning people off cycling 
 
Reply 
There are no planned surface upgrades to the existing cycle lanes in the North West 
Area as part of Road Maintenance Services 2023 Annual Works Programme. If 

Page 17

mailto:andy.walsh@dublincity.ie
mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie


Councillor Callaghan would like to suggest specific areas where surface improvements 
can be implemented these areas will be considered for the 2024 Works Programme. 
 

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.49 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager to survey and address the poor conditions of the footpaths at 
(details supplied) which are currently uneven and represent a trip hazard. 
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143622) has been passed to the local engineer who 
will inspect this issues.  
 
A significant number of repairs have been carried out in the area associated to the 
2022 & 2023 Works Programmes, to reduce the overall number of defects. This area 
will be considered as part of the 2024 Works Programme. 
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie  
 
Q.50 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager if, further to serious concerns raised regarding an area in Dublin 
11 (details supplied), proper cleansing of the area and repair of footpaths can be 
carried out and if a scheme can be drawn up in conjunction with local business 
owners to enhance the area in terms of the streetscape, and to make it generally 
more attractive 

 
 
Reply 
In relation to the footpaths significant repairs were carried out in the area of (details 
supplied) as part of the North West Civil Works Programme 2021, through to early 
2022.  
 
The areas the constituent has reported to be in poor condition are not in charge by 
DCC Road Maintenance and should be raised with the Building Management 
Company. 
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Waste Management Services clean the shopping area on (details supplied) on a 
daily basis. 
Contact:    Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:             01 2224240,  
Email        mick.boyle@dublincity.ie    

 
Q. 51 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager if greater maintenance of Johnstown Park, Dublin 11 can be 
carried out to bring it up to the same standard as Griffith Park and Albert College 
Park. 

Page 18

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie


 
Reply 
Park Services have dedicated park staff based at the park who carry out on a regular 
servicing. Johnstown Park is overseen by the same management team as the above-
mentioned Parks. Park services will arrange a follow up inspection of the park to 
determine if there is any obvious maintenance issues that should be addressed in the 
coming week. 

 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.52 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager if repair of a footpath can be carried out at (details supplied) 
 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services has inspected this location. Job number 41112995 has 

been scheduled when a works crew is available in the area. At present there is a 

large backlog of repairs outstanding which we are working through.  

Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 
 
Q.53 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager when will the Ballymun Swimming pool slides be operational 
again. This has been an ongoing issue and has is a constant disappointment to the 
children locally. 
 
Reply 
Unfortunately the slides will remain closed as there is a major leak from one of the 
slides when it is operating. The slides require a structural survey to ensure they are 
safe to be opened to the public.  The Sport and Recreation Section is currently 
working on a tender document for the Sport and Fitness Facilities. The tender will 
incorporate design and refurbishment works in a number of sport and fitness 
facilities. The Ballymun Sport and Fitness Facility is one of the facilities included and 
the slides is one element which will be addressed.   
 
Contact:  Emma Byrne, Ballymun Centre Manager   
Tel:   01 2228243  
Email:  emma.byrne@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.54 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can Maker Spaces be put in place in the new Finglas Library 
and Ballymun Library.  Ballymun Library has an excellent opportunity to convert the 
garage attached to the Ballymun Library and this could be converted into an excellent 
community space which is in short supply.  A Maker Space in both libraries would be 
a brilliant addition to our library service encouraging innovation, creativity and 
training.  These spaces encourage upcycling, repairs and reuse of so many items 
that get discarded too quickly. 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


Reply 
Neither Finglas nor Ballymun Library is large enough to have a separate space of the 
type that Coolock Library offers. We are working on plans to expand our Maker Spaces 
programming throughout Dublin City Libraries, and both Finglas and Ballymun will be 
included in that programming.  
 
We continue to offer the Maker Space in Coolock Library, the crafting groups that meet 
in many Libraries across the city, as well as workshops held across the branch libraries 
such as our “Tech for teens” series which runs at the autumn mid-term, and events 
delivered with partners like such partners as the Rediscovery centre, Anyone 4 
science, Metatech, Make Create Innovate, and Bricks4kidz. 
 
Contact:  Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Tel:   2224816     
Email:  brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.55 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can a replacement tree be put in place on the centre grass strip 
on the Ballymun Road near the entrance to Dublin City University. 
 
Reply 
Parks Services have listed this location for inspection, should it be deemed a suitable 
location for a new tree it will be added to our tree-ordering list. 
 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.56 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can the paths on Ferndale Road in the cul de sac be 
replaced/repaired.  
 
Reply 
An enquiry (Confirm reference 11143622) has been passed to the local engineer who 
will inspect this issues.  
 
A significant number of repairs have been carried out in the area, associated to the 
2022 & 2023 Works Programmes, to reduce the overall number of defects. This area 
will be considered as part of the 2024 Works Programme. 
 
Contact:  John Dalton, Roads Maintenance North.   

Tel:  01 2222222    

Email:  john.dalton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.57 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can Bike Repair Stations be put in a number of areas to make it 
easier to keep your bike in good repair. 
 
Reply 
Dublin City Council have been trialling a public bicycle repair station in Drury Street 
Car Park for the past number of years with limited success. Despite the fact that the 
repair station and pump were placed in an indoor facility with CCTV cameras and 
security, the repair station has been vandalised and the bike pump broken on a 

Page 20

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


number of occasions. We are aware of other local authorities in Dublin having similar 
issues with repair stations placed in the public realm. 
To date it has been our view that these repair stations are unsuitable for placing on 
public streets. In addition we have yet to establish that there is a clear demand for 
such a service and just how many cyclists would  actually conduct running repairs to 
their bicycles should such a facility be provided. 
 
DCC has two additional indoor cycling facilities, one in the Jervis Street Car Park and 
one in the Spire Car Park. As these facilities become popular we will look to install 
repair stations in these locations in an effort to establish the demand for these 
facilities and whether consideration should be given to rolling them out across the 
city. 

 
 Contact:            Alec Dundon, Senior Executive Engineer  
Tel:                    01 222 2706  
Email:                alec.dundon@dublincity.ie 

Q.58 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can Tolka Valley playground be repaired and secured from 
future damage. The locals are very frustrated that their children lose out on this 
public amenity continuously. 

 
Reply 
Parks Services continue to routinely repair and maintain remaining play items in this 
playground. Ongoing vandalism at this location makes it very difficult to make any 
obvious improvement on the play space. Park Services have listed your request for 
further review taking into consideration other ongoing development proposals for the 
park. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

  
Q. 59 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can more planting and planned activities for the community take 
place in Johnstown Park. 
 
Reply 
A park permit is required to run a community activity in the parks and these are 
applied for through DCC Parks Section. Community & Development are happy to 
work with our Parks Section to delivery activities in the park in conjunction with local 
community groups. 
 
Contact:    Larry Dooley, Community & Social Development Officer    
Tel:       086-8150358   
Email:      larry.dooley@dublincity.ie  

Parks Services are always happy to engage with local community groups/schools 
should they have a proposal in mind. Proposals are reviewed on a case-by-case 
basis. 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
 

Page 21

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie
mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


Q.60 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can a youth expo take place in the coming weeks when most 
youth organisations will be starting back after the summer holidays. This will 
encourage more young people to join these clubs if they can meet the leaders and 
discuss what they have to offer in a face to face setting.  The local schools could all 
visit at set times to see what is on offer in the area.  Also it could be a great 
opportunity for these organisations to look for volunteers to help run these groups. 
 
Reply: 
Youth organisations in the Finglas Area run Summer Programmes in June, July and   
August these programmes are specifically designed to encourage and support the 
younger generation transition into appropriate programmes in September/October. 
These programmes are identified through local schools and An Garda Siochana. 
 
Registration for the Summer Programme is open to all young people in the area and  
is subject to availability. 
Youth Services engage on regular basis with local schools, with schools attending  
programmes during school term. 
Youth Services are continuously on the look -out for volunteers and many of the    
current crop of volunteers are past users of the service.         
 
Contact:  Larry Dooley, Community & Social Development Officer    
Tel:      086-8150358   
Email:      larry.dooley@dublincity.ie  

Q.61 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can more tree planting and pollinator friendly plants be put into 
Northway Park.  This will help reduce noise and air pollution and increase habitats for 
wildlife 
 
Reply 
Parks Services will list this proposal for further consideration and inclusion in our future 
Parks Improvement Programme 2024/25 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, NW District Parks Superintendent 
Tel:   01 222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
Q.62 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager when will the chess tables & table tennis go into all local parks 
 
Reply 
Parks Services do not have plans to install chess tables & table tennis into all local 
parks. We have 2 chess tables to be installed at Albert College Park and Poppintree 
Park, We are currently awaiting a contractor to install these. The installation of any 
additional equipment in our parks must take into consideration existing environment, 
amenities and available space. 
 
Contact:  Stephen Groome, Exec Parks and Landscape Officer, NW Parks  
Tel:   222 3395 
Email:  parks@dublincity.ie 

 
      Order: Noted 
 
 

Page 22

mailto:parks@dublincity.ie


Item 3      Finglas Area Office Report, Pat Teehan, Area Manager. 
     

     Order: Noted 
 
Item 4 With reference to Lease of a plot adjacent to 90 Fairlawn Road, Finglas, Dublin 

11 for gardening purposes            
 
Order: Recommend to City Council 

 
Item 5       Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O’Reilly, Area Manager 
 

Order: Noted 
 
 
Item 6. With reference to Grant of Lease of Unit S5, Poppintree Neighbourhood Centre, 

Ballymun, Dublin 

Order: Recommend to City Council 
 
 
Item 7.        Motion in the name of Councillor Caroline Conroy  
 

To ask that this Area Committee support putting in place connections with local 

groups and the new North City Recycling Centre to reduce the amount of items 

ending up in landfill and incineration.  An example of this would be that the local 

men’s shed who carry out a lot of wood & metal work for local organisations 

could avail of waste materials in the Recycling Centre, hardwoods are in great 

demand by the group and are costly to purchase.  This partnership and other 

partnerships with local groups would reduce their    costs and DCC costs by 

reusing these materials. 

Order:   Robert Ingram to report back to Councillor with a detailed report in 
relation to recycling groups and the use of Social Media platforms. 

 
Item 8       Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

That this Area Committee: 
Stands in solidarity with FÓRSA members of Dublin City Council and other local   
authorities across the state as they commence industrial action to address issues 
around job evaluation and pay; 
We support their call for a formal job evaluation process to ensure workers jobs 
are properly graded and enumerated; 
We call on Minister for Housing, Local Government and Heritage of Ireland 
Darragh O’Brien, the LGMA and the Executive of Dublin City Council to return to 
negotiations with FÓRSA and to agree a mechanism for progressing the job 
evaluation process.  
We also call on the chairperson of the North West Area Committee to write to 
both the LGMA and Minister O'Brien urging them to engage with FÓRSA to 
resolve this dispute as soon as possible.  

 
Order: Report to Councillor 

 
Item .9      Public Domain Report, Robert Ingram Public Domain Officer 
 
  Order: Noted 

Page 23



 
Item: 10      Presentation North West Area Arts Research  
   

Order: Noted 
 
Item 11.     BusConnects Network Redesign Routes 
   

Order: Noted 
 
Item 12      Traffic Service Request, Status Report 
 

Order:  Noted 
 
Item. 13     Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting 
 

Order:    Noted 

 
Item. 14     AOB  Tree Pruning, Tree Strategy and Works Programme in the NWA parks 
 
                         Order: Bernard Brady to report back to Councillors  
 
 
 
 
 
NWA Councillors:    Caroline Conroy, Noeleen Reilly, Keith Connolly, Mary Callaghan, 

Anthony Connaghan, and Briege MacOscar. 
 
Apologises: Pat Teehan (Senior Executive Officer) 
 
 
 
Officials:    Bruce Philips (A/Executive Manager), Jackie O’Reilly (Area 

Manager Ballymun), Robert Ingram (Public Domain Officer), Fiona 
Farrell (Staff Officer) Olive Warnock (Staff Officer), Derek Healy 
(Housing Manager), Larry Dooley (Community & Development 
Officer), Bláthnaid Conlon, (Senior Staff Officer), William Managan 
(Senior Executive Engineer)Joao Brescia (Assistant Engineer)   
Bernard Brady (Senior Executive Landscape Architect), Kelly 

Hickey (Assistant Arts Officer), Ciarán Loughnane (Senior Staff 

Officer) Liam Barry (Economic Development Officer) 

Councillor Mary Callaghan  
                 Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 4.10pm 

 

Page 24



Questions to the Area Manager  North West Area Committee 
      Meeting Tuesday 17th October 2023 

 
Q.1 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the review of the bus terminus at 
(details supplied) as discussed at last month’s area committee meeting. 

 
Q.2 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to examine a pedestrian crossing at (details supplied). There are 
two schools at this location along with an adult education centre, some of whom are 
special needs users. 
 

Q.3 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the removal of the fencing and cleaning 
up of the area at (details supplied) 
 

Q.4 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the cutting back/removal of the high 
shrubbery at (details supplied) 

 
Q.5 Councillor Keith Connolly  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the repair/repaving of the tarmac area at (details 
supplied) 
 

Q.6 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the repair of the broken light on the roundabout at 
(details supplied).  
 

Q. 7 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the inspection of the trees at (details supplied) 
with a view to being included on a pruning schedule.  
 

Q.8 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the inspection of the trees at (details supplied) 
with a view to being included on a pruning schedule.  
 

Q.9 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the cleaning schedule/ staffing on 
Waste Management staff in Finglas Village. 
 

Q.10 Councillor Keith Connolly  
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the tarmacking/ repaving on the tarmac 
area at (details supplied) This is a high footfall area with two schools and an adult 
education service. It is also on a main bus route.  
 

Q.11 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
To ask the Manager to arrange a storage facility were nets, flags, portable goals and 
other equipment maybe stored in (details supplied) 

 
Q.12 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to arrange for regular litter picks at the  front and back of (details 
supplied)   There is constant litter from the shops and if a conversation can be had 
with the shop owners about keeping the place in a better condition.  

 

Page 25



Q.13 Councillor Noeleen Reilly   
To ask the Manager for an update on the Pedestrian Crossing at the (details 
supplied) roundabout. 

 
Q.14 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to carry out waste management checks at (details supplied) 
junction due to the constant littering there.  

 
Q.15 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager what the progress is on the Sensory Garden at (details 
supplied)  

 
Q.16 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
 To ask the Manager for an update on the redevelopment of (details supplied)  
 
Q.17 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  

To ask the Manager to clear the vast illegal dumping on (details supplied) and if 
cameras can be put up there to identify who is dumping the rubbish. 
 

Q.18 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
To ask the Manager to carry out a waste management check in (details supplied) 
 

Q.19 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
To ask the Manager to prune the tree at (details supplied). It is blocking the view of 
the tenant inside.  
 

Q.20 Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
To ask the Manager for the current planning application for the (details supplied) and 
if the derelict fees have been paid 
 

Q.21 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can a sign requesting drivers to slow down as approaching 
children at play be put at the entrance of (details supplied) 
 

Q.22 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can a pothole on the laneway between (details supplied).  
 

Q.23 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can a solution be put in place to curb people from using the end 
of a terraced house’s boundary wall as a way of entering land behind the resident at 
(details supplied) 

 

Q.24 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
 To ask the Manager can a yellow box be put at the entrance of (details supplied) 
 
Q.25   Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can the grass be cut on the big greens in the Wadelai & Hillcrest 
areas 
 

Q.26 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can the graffiti on the box outside St. Kevin’s School, Barry 
Avenue be removed 

 
 
 

Page 26



Q.27 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can bins & dog poo bins please be emptied more often there 
seems to be issues with reporting full bins on the Citizen Hub. There is a particular 
issue with a bin outside Sacred Heart Boys National School. 

 
Q.28 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can the drains be cleaned out around the Glasanaon Drive and 
Griffith Parade areas in particular there was local flooding at this sites during the last 
rainfall. 
 

Q.29 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
To ask the Manager can yellow lines be put on the corner of Deanswift Road and St. 
Pappins Road nearer to the green area. 

 
Q.30 Councillor Caroline Conroy  
 To ask the Manager can the bowling pitches in Albert College Park be repaired. 
 
Q.31 Councillor Caroline Conroy  

To ask the Manager can a general sweep up  be arranged for Wadelai, Hillcrest, 
Glasnevin Avenue and Ballygall Road this will help with the local clean ups. 

 
Q.32 Councillor Mary Callaghan  

To ask the Manager if attention can be paid to (details supplied) 
 

Q.33 Councillor Mary Callaghan  
To ask the Manager for an update on the proposed new junctions at the roundabouts 
on Jamestown Road and Saint Margaret’s Road in Finglas 
 

Q.34 Councillor Mary Callaghan  
To ask the Manager for an update on the water leak at (details supplied) which has 
been ongoing for years. 
 

Q.35 Councillor Mary Callaghan  
To ask the Manager to give his plan for addressing the issue of fallen leaves on 
footpaths this autumn as they create a danger for pedestrians when they get wet.   
 

Q.36 Councillor Mary Callaghan  
To ask the Manager if, further to representations made by a constituent (details 
supplied), double yellow lines can be installed at the location as a matter of urgency. 
 

Q.37 Councillor Briege MacOscar 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the pruning of the trees beside (details supplied) 
as they are quite large and the branches knock against the resident’s house during 
stormy weather. 

 
Q.38 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to arrange for repair of the following locations in (details 
supplied)  
 

Q.39 Councillor Briege MacOscar  
To ask the Manager to outline if pruning is due to take place of the trees on the green 
at (details supplied)  

 
Q.40 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to arrange for repair of the pavement outside (details supplied)  

Page 27



 
Q.41 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to provide an update on the trees between (details supplied) 
which were on a works list as per q. 25 February NWAC as they obscure street 
lighting and illegal dumping. 
 

Q.42 Councillor Briege MacOscar  
To ask the Manager to outline if the tree at (details supplied) is due to receive 
pruning as it has become very tall and the roots are causing issues with the 
pavement 
 

Q.43 Councillor Briege MacOscar  
To ask the Manager to investigate potential safety concerns for traffic turning from 
(details supplied)  

 
Q.44 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to confirm if the pavement and kerb at (details supplied) is on a 
list for repair 

 
Q.45 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the paths in (details supplied) to be inspected for 
potential inclusion in the works programme 

 
Q.46 Councillor Briege MacOscar  

To ask the Manager to investigate the possible removal of the apple tree at (details 
supplied) as several neighbours have unfortunately reported several incidents of the 
apples being thrown at the houses facing the park. 
 

Q.47 Councillor Briege MacOscar  
To ask the Manager to outline if it would be possible to install a basketball court at 
(details supplied) by including extra equipment/lines at the tennis courts to allow both 
sports use of the space 
 

Q.48 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the footpaths to the rear of (details supplied) in 
Ballymun to be repaired/re-instated. 
 

Q.49 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the railed green areas at Finglas Place/Ballygall to 
be upgraded and investigate the possibility of natural play activities to be placed 
within 

 
Q.50 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for an inspection of the street lighting at Kildonan 
Road. Some residents have been reporting that the lights are very dim. 

 
Q.51 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to arrange for the handle on the inner door at (details supplied) 
to be replaced 
 

Q.52 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to arrange for railings at cul de sac in (details supplied). 

 
 

Page 28



Q.53 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to provide a report on the amount of illegal dumping in the North 
West Area accompanied with pictures and costs for removing so we can show what 
additional services could be provided if the level of dumping wasn’t currently 
occurring. 
 

Q.54  Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to arrange for the replacement of dog fouling bins with larger 
general use litter bins at the entrances to Mellows Park along Casement Road. Many 
people walk their dogs here and the bins are usually overflowing. 
 

Q.55 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
To ask the Manager to arrange for regular dog warden patrols in Tolka Valley Park. 
Residents regularly report seeing larger dogs and possibly banned breeds off their 
leads in the park at various times and is deterring some residents from using the 
park. They have also reported that trees are being damaged by the larger dogs biting 
thinner sapling trees. 

 
Q.56 Councillor Anthony Connaghan  

To ask the Manager to investigate the possibility of providing low temperature 
recovery baths in the local Leisure Centres. 

 
 

Page 29



 
 
 
   The Chairman and Members of 
    North West Area Committee. 
 
   Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
   Item No: 3 

Finglas Area Office Report 

     Housing (1st January – 30th September 2023) 

     Estate Management 

Statistics  2023 - Finglas Area Office  

Complaints YTD 2023 

No. Anti-Social Complaints per 1997 Act - drug related 31 

No. Anti-Social Complaints per 1997 Act - not drug related 34 

No. Other Complaints (nuisance) 169 

No. Racial Harassment Complaints 0 

TOTAL 234 

 
 

Interviews  

No. Anti-Social Interviews per 1997 Act(Formal) 42 

No. Other Interviews(Informal) 101 

TOTAL 143 

 
 

No. Complaints Referred to Central Est. Mgt. Unit for 
Action 

8 

No. Section 20 Evictions 1 

No. Excluding Orders 0 

 Applied for by Tenant 0 

 Applied for by DCC 0 

 Granted in Court 0 

 Refused / Failed in court 0 

 Withdrawn 0 

No. Surrender of Tenancy due to Anti-Social Behaviour 0 

No. Tenancy Warnings served 0 

No. Abandonment Notice Served 0 

No. Possession Orders requested 0 

No. Possession Orders granted 0 

No. Appeals / Judicial Reviews / Challenges 0 

No. Warrants Executed (Evictions) 0 

No. H/A of refusal / deferral to let due to Anti-Social Behaviour 3 

 
 

No. Requests for Mediation 0 

Page 30



 
 
 
 
 Allocations 

 
  

Housing & Apartments 

Category Housing  Transfers Choice Base Letting 

Bands 2 & 3 16 8 15 

De-tenanting N/A 0  

Estate Management N/A 0  

Homeless 4 N/A 1 

Homeless HAP N/A 6 3 

Maintenance Grounds N/A 1  

Medical 2 5 1 

Surrendering Larger N/A 2 1 

Succession 0 0  

Travellers 3 0 1 

Welfare 2 0  

Total 27 22 22 

Page 31



 
 

  

Senior Citizens 

Category Housing  Transfers Choice Base Letting 

Bands 2 & 3 5 5  

Medical 0 2  

Welfare 1 0  

Homeless 6 N/A  

Homeless HAP N/A 1  

Travellers 0 N/A  

Estate Management N/A 1  

De-tenanting N/A 0  

Maintenance Grounds N/A 0  

Surrendering Larger N/A 0  

Financial Contribution 0 N/A  

Succession 0 0  

Total 12 9  

Page 32



Voids Report 

Vacant Housing Units (18 in total) 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Ballygall Avenue 3 bed house 10/08/23 Appointed to contractor T.B.C 

Cardiffsbridge Ave 2 bed house 04/08/23 Appointed to contractor Dec 23 

Casement Close 3 bed house 18/07/23 Appointed to contractor Nov 23 

Finglaswood Rd Maisonette 31/07/23 Appointed to contractor Oct 23 

Glenties Drive 3 bed house 11/07/23 Appointed to contractor Oct 23 

Kippure Park 4 bed house 21/09/23 Appointed to contractor  T.B.C 

Plunkett Road 3 bed house 12/09/23 Appointed to contractor T.B.C 

Premier Square 2 bed apartment 11/08/23 Issues with property T.B.C 

Ratoath Drive 2 bed house 18/08/23 To be appointed to contractor  T.B.C 

Ratoath Drive 2 bed house 18/08/23 To be appointed to contractor  T.B.C 

Ratoath Drive 2 bed house 18/08/23 To be appointed to contractor  T.B.C 

Wellmount Ave 3 bed house 07/09/23 To be appointed to contractor T.B.C 

 

Vacant Housing Units (more than 4 months) 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Berryfied Road 4 bed house 19/06/23 Appointed to contractor, 
issue with dwelling 

Dec 23 

Cappagh Road 3 bed house 30/03/23 Appointed to contractor Oct 23 

Casement Drive 3 bed house 03/04/23 Appointed to contractor Sept 23 

Casement Green 3 bed house 14/07/22 Assigned to applicant Awaiting 
E.S.B 

Finglas Park 3 bed house 23/08/22 Assigned to applicant Awaiting 
E.S.B 

Glasnevin Ave 3 bed house 24/04/23 Appointed to contractor Sept 23 

Page 33



 

Vacant Senior Citizens Units (8 in total) 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Glasanaon Court bedsit 03/08/23 Direct Labour T.B.C 

Glasanaon Court bedsit 03/10/23 Direct Labour T.B.C 

Mellowes Court bedsit 28/09/23 Direct Labour T.B.C 

Mellowes Court 1 bed 01/08/23 Direct Labour Oct 23 

Mellowes Court Bungalow 28/07/23 Direct Labour Oct 23 

 

Vacant Senior Citizens Units (more than 4 months) 

Griffith Crescent 1 bed  02/05/23 Direct Labour Ready to let 

Mellowes Court bedsit 28/06/23 On Offer Ready to let 

Merville Court 1 bed  30/06/23 On Offer Ready to let 

 

 

Rents Update 

 

 The Finglas Area Office continues to offer rent assessment service for tenants living 

in the Finglas area. 

 

Assessments 1,359 

Applications for Permission to Reside  36 

Refunds 14 

 

General Matters 

Finglas Employment Initiative: 
The Local Area Office has initiated contact with all the major infrastructural investors in the 
Finglas Area with a view to providing employment opportunities to local people with regards 
to the LUAS and various other projects happening in the area. New members to include 
Colaiste Idé, The Finglas Training Centre which will add depth to the level of services to be 
offered under this project. All Post Primary Education Centres have been contacted with a 
view to engaging young people in training/education/third level courses to prepare for all 
employment opportunities that will occur as a result of investment in infrastructure, 
accommodation, education, business and retail. 
The next meeting will take place on the 17th November 2023.  
 

Page 34



Finglas Business Association 
The Local Area Office is contacting businesses in the Finglas Area with a view to creating an 
effective forum that encourages and supports local businesses to connect and engage in the 
economic and community enhancement of the Finglas Area. 
 
Scribblestown 
The Area Office initiated a mini competition from the Consultants Framework. There was no 
uptake from the contractors due to leave commitments and the short timeframe. 
The Area Office has initiated a full tender competition and to that end has compiled all the 
relevant paperwork to proceed to the procurement process. End dates and evaluation 
process has yet to be finalised. However, it is expected that the process will be fully 
complete by the end of the year with survey start dates in mid-January. 
All homeowners have been appraised of the taking in charge process and to that end were 
provided with relevant request form for completion. There has been a very slow response to 
date. 
 
Berryfield 
The Housing, Community and Public Domain Sections are working with the residents in 
Berryfield and the surrounding area with a view to alleviating some of the issues that have 
been identified by residents. Walls have been cleaned off and the Public Domain and 
Housing Teams have authorised a number of clean-ups. 
 
Small Scale Works 
Works under this scheme are continuing. Further works will be completed by the end of the 
year that will further enhance the Finglas area.  
 
Neighbourhood Transport Scheme 
Neighbourhood Transport Schemes are aimed at addressing the problems in residential 
areas affected by transport issues such as cut-through traffic, speeding and other dangerous 
issues.  
The aim of the scheme is to allow for more walkable and calmer streets where the priority is 
given to pedestrians, cyclists and sustainable transport. 
  
These schemes typically involve implementing filtered permeability measures (i.e. bollards 
and/or planters installed across the road) to reroute motorised traffic out of residential areas 
and onto the main roads. The schemes are initially installed for a 6 month trial period 
following public consultation and with the support of councillors. The effectiveness of the trial 
is evaluated during the trial which includes analysing traffic surveys and further public 
consultation. An evaluation report summarising the results is presented to councillors and 
councillors advise whether to install the scheme permanently or remove it. 
The area around Willow Park Avenue/Grove was initially selected. However, having 
consulted with Local Councillors who provided some feedback from the local community, the 
scheme was withdrawn. 
The Area Office will continue to work with the Neighbourhood Transport Engineer, Local 
Councillors and the community to seek suitable areas for improvement. 
 
Teen Spaces 
Funding has been sought for a second Teen Space in the Finglas South area. If successful, 
the Area Office will need to secure some additional funding in order to achieve the ideal 
space with relevant services to ensure what has been requested can be provided. 
Preliminary investigation regarding costs, location etc are ongoing.  
 
City Neighbourhood Awards 
Congratulations to all involved and especially to Lakeglen who were overall winners. This is 
as a result of all the hard work by the communities with the support of our Public Domain 

Page 35



and Community & Social Development teams. The North West Area have every reason to 
be proud of these achievements. 

 

Community & Social Development   

 

St. Canices Photographic Exhibition: 
Dublin City Council, Finglas Area Office in conjunction with Finglas Library launched an 

exhibition of photographs by Mr. John Sunderland. The exhibition focused on the 

development of St. Canice’s Abbey & Graveyard. The exhibition will remain in the library for 

“History Month”  

Dr James Curry gave a short talk on the development of the site over the years.       

 

 
 

Film on Finglas “A Finglas Story” 
Dublin City Council, Community & Social Development Section in conjunction with Declan 

Cassidy co-hosted an event entitled “A Finglas Event” in St. Canices CoI on Thursday 14th 

September.     

The 3 half hour Films looked at Finglas through its village years and into the growth of 

Finglas as its known today. 

The attendees included many people who participated in the making of the series of films. 

“A Finglas Story” can be viewed on DCTV and YouTube.   

Page 36



 

 
 

Halloween 2023 “Finglas Fright Night” 
Dublin City Council, Finglas Area office is currently putting the final touches to the annual 

“Finglas Fright Night, Halloween Festival”   

The event will take place on Tuesday 31st October from 6.00pm to 9.00pm in Finglas Civic 

Centre, Mellowes Road. Finglas Fright Night attractions includes music, dance, carnival 

rides, food stalls, fun & games.  

The event requires the continuing support from local voluntary groups who play an 

invaluable part in the smooth running of the event. An Garda Síochána support the event on 

the night. The Community & Social Development Section is looking to hold a “sensory hour” 

for children on the autism spectrum between 5.00pm -6.00pm prior to opening the event to 

the general public. 

 

Community Recognition Fund: 
Dublin City Council, Finglas Area Office supported applications under the Community 

Recognition Fund in March 2023. 

The following groups have received funding, through the scheme; 

 

 €27,500.00 Finglas Youth Resource Centre, Solar Panels 

 €1,717.00 Meeting Place Club, Equipment/Music 

 €25,000.00 St.Canice’s Parochial Hall Disabled Toilets/Access 

Page 37



 

Dublin City Council, Finglas Area Office is working with the above groups to draw down their 

allocated funding.   

 

Summer Project Volunteer Night: 
Summer Projects play an important role in keeping young people active and safe over the 

summer months. The Summer Projects in Finglas can only happen thanks to the hard work 

and dedication of volunteers in the area. 

Dublin City Council Community & Social Development Section with Cross-care will hold a 

night of celebration and thanks for the volunteers that make Summer Projects happen in the 

area. The event will be ticket only. Details of date/time and venue to be confirmed.  

 

Meeting Place Club: 
Dublin City Council Community & Social Development Section supported the Meeting Place 

Club during their recent corporate day.  

Team members from Yahoo supported the Meeting Place Club by painting their space in the 

Scouts Den, Cardiffsbridge Road, Finglas on Friday 22nd September. 

Participants from the Meeting Place Club provided the entertainment on the day.  

 

 

 

Pat Teehan 

Area Manager Finglas 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of   Development Department  
North West Area Committee. 
 
   Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
   Item No: 6 
 
 

NOTIFICATION OF PROPOSED VARIATION NO. 4 TO THE DUBLIN CITY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2022-2028 RELATING TO SDRA 3 – FINGLAS VILLAGE 

ENVIRONS AND JAMESTOWN LANDS, TO INCORPORATE THE APPROVED 

JAMESTOWN MASTERPLAN 2023 

 
1.0 Introduction 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to Section 13 of the Planning and Development Act 2000, as 

amended, that Dublin City Council (DCC) intends to propose a variation to the Dublin City 

Development Plan 2022-2028 (the Development Plan) to amend SDRA 3 – Finglas Village 

Environs and Jamestown Lands to include:  

 Deletion of section B ‘Jamestown Lands’ of SDRA 3 and replacement with the recently 

approved Jamestown Masterplan 2023 (the Masterplan).  

 Modification of figure 13-3 to reflect the Jamestown Masterplan. 

 

DCC’s Planning and Property Development Department published the Jamestown Masterplan 

on 21 September 2023, made according to the requirements of SDRA 3 of the Development 

Plan. The Masterplan is a detailed refinement of the SDRA framework set out in the 

Development Plan for 43 hectares of Jamestown Industrial Estate lands at Jamestown Road, 

St Margaret's Road / McKee Avenue, Finglas, Dublin 11.  

 

Following a public consultation process from 27 March to 15 May 2023 (both dates inclusive), 

the Masterplan was approved at the monthly council meeting on 3 July 2023. Changes to the 

content of the Draft Masterplan were made following the public consultation process, as set 

out in report nos. 142/2023 and 150/2023 of the Chief Executive and as amended by motions 

agreed at the Council Meeting on 3 July 2023.  

 

The Jamestown Masterplan represents an urban design-led and evidence-based approach to 

the regeneration of this strategic land bank, capitalising on significant state investment in 

public transportation in accordance with national and regional policy objectives relating to 

compact and sustainable growth. Accordingly, it has the capacity to deliver new homes, create 

Page 39



new and support existing jobs, along with the provision of associated community and 

educational uses, all underpinned by exemplary urban design principles.  

While the Masterplan is given statutory effect by SDRA 3 of the Development Plan, it is 

proposed to incorporate the approved Masterplan into the Development Plan. This will give 

full legal status to the Masterplan.  

 

2.0 Environmental Assessments 

In accordance with the SEA Directive (2002/42/EC) and the provisions of Schedule 2A of the 
Planning and Development (Strategic Environmental Assessment) (SEA) Regulations 2004-
2011 (the SEA Regulations), the approved Masterplan was screened for Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA).  A screening for Appropriate Assessment (AA) was 
carried out having regard to Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive. DCC as the Competent 
Authority, having considered the SEA and AA Screening Reports prepared by DCC, and 
having consulted with the prescribed environmental authorities, has published final 
determinations along with the approved Masterplan. A Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
(SFRA) and Surface Water Management Strategy was also prepared. The approved 
Masterplan, along with the aforementioned reports and determinations are available: 
 
 
https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/planning/strategic-planning/other-plans-studies-and-

guides/master-plans/draft-jamestown-masterplan. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Planning and Development Act 2000, as amended, 

and the Planning and Development Regulations 2001, as amended, the proposed variation 

will be subject to further SEA and AA screening and determinations will be issued.  

 

As required by legislation, Dublin City Council is carrying out consultation with prescribed 

bodies including:  

 The Environmental Protection Agency. 

 The Minister of Housing, Local Government and Heritage. 

 Development Applications Unit of the Department of Housing, Local Government and 

Heritage. 

 The Minister of Environment, Climate and Communications. 

 The Minister of Agriculture, Food and the Marine. 

 Adjoining planning authorities (South Dublin County Council, Fingal County Council, 

Dún Laoghaire-Rathdown County Council). 

 

DCC as the Competent Authority, will issue final determinations on the requirement for SEA 

and AA that will accompany the proposed variation. 

3.0 Process 

Pursuant to Section 13 of the Planning and Development Act 2000, as amended, the proposed 

variation will be placed on public display for a period of 4 weeks, commencing end October / 

early November (exact date to be confirmed). During this time, members of the public and 

interested parties will be invited to make submissions. A Chief Executive’s Report will be 

prepared and issued to the elected members of Dublin City Council, no later than 8 weeks 

Page 40

https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/planning/strategic-planning/other-plans-studies-and-guides/master-plans/draft-jamestown-masterplan
https://www.dublincity.ie/residential/planning/strategic-planning/other-plans-studies-and-guides/master-plans/draft-jamestown-masterplan


after commencing the public consultation process. The consideration of the proposed variation 

and the Chief Executive’s Report shall be completed not later than 6 weeks after the 

submission of the Report to the elected members. In accordance with Section 251 of the 

Planning and Development Act, the period between 24 December and 1 January (both dates 

inclusive) shall be disregarded when calculating appropriate periods or other time limits 

referred to in the Act or in any regulations made under the Act. The members, having 

considered the proposed variation and Chief Executive’s report, may, by resolution as they 

consider appropriate, make the variation, with or without modifications, or they may refuse to 

make it. The Chief Executive intends that proposed Variation No. 4 and the accompanying 

Chief Executive’s Report be considered at the council meeting in February 2024. 

 

Deirdre Scully                                                   __________________ 

Deirdre Scully                                                                    Date 
City Planning Officer 
 

Page 41



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
 
Meeting: 17th October 2023 

 
Item. 7  

Ballymun Area Office Report  
 

 

1. LAP Update 

2. Community and Social Development Update  

3. Ballymun Otherworld Halloween Festival 

4. Economic Development Update 

5. Housing Report 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



1.Local Area Plan Update 
 

Vacant DCC units 

Shangan Neighbourhood Centre 

 The disposal of Unit 3 to the STAR Project for their Easy Street team was approved 

at the September council meeting 

 One viewing for unit 2 and 4 in September, awaiting follow-up  

Turnpike, Santry Cross 

There has been interest in this unit with 4 viewings taking place since the property was 

advertised. It is listed on Daft and enquiries can be made to liam.barry@dublincity.ie  

For further information: Commercial property for rent in The Turnpike, Santry Cross, 

Ballymun, Dublin 9 (daft.ie) 

 

2.Community and Social Development Update 
 

Recovery Month 

Walk 

The Ballymun Recovery month was co-ordinated by the Local Drugs Task Force which took 

place this September. Dublin City Council Community and Social Development team  

organised the Recovery “purple ribbon” logo to be projected on the Civic Centre building 

during the month of September. The Local Drugs & Alcohol Task Force joined the DCC 

weekly community walk in Poppintree Park on the 21st September to celebrate Recovery 

Month. The Community team organised refreshments and entertainment for all the walkers.  

  

Climbing Sessions 

Dublin City Council Community team funded and organised two rock climbing sessions for 

the members of the Ballymun Youth Action Project and one session of for the Aisling Project 

after Schools Programme at the Awesome Walls climbing centre. The sessions were well 

attended and enjoyed by all. 

 

 

 

 
Page 43

mailto:liam.barry@dublincity.ie
https://www.daft.ie/commercial-property-for-rent/the-turnpike-santry-cross-ballymun-dublin-9/5390052
https://www.daft.ie/commercial-property-for-rent/the-turnpike-santry-cross-ballymun-dublin-9/5390052


 

Positive Ageing Sports Day 
The Ballymun Community & Social Development team organised an Older Adults sports 

taster day as part of Positive Ageing week which took place at Poppintree Sports & 

Community Centre on Friday 6th of October from 11am-2pm.  

Activities included pickle ball (indoor tennis), chair based exercise with Siel Bleu & a Bowls 

demonstration with St Pappins Bowls club and a disability Boccia demonstration supported 

by the Ballymun Active Disability Interest Group.  

The day was a great success, well attended and there was positive feedback from 

participants to further develop the above programmes and activities in the community. Our 

Community team and Sports Development Officer will follow up on same.  

  

  

Coultry Gardens Fun Day 

The Coultry Gardens local residents Annual Fun Day took place on Saturday 16th of 

September.  DCC Community and Social Development team were delighted to support this 

event by allocating sports, play and recreation equipment, goodie bags and medals.  

 

Ballymun Community Expo 

The Community and Social Development team held a Community Expo in the Atrium of the 

Ballymun Civic Centre on Wednesday 13th September from 2-4pm. This was a very 

successful initiative and there was a fantastic turn out on the day.  There were 25 local 

community groups and organisations stands, showcasing all of the services, supports and 

activities they provided in the Ballymun community.  There was great interest in the Tai Chi 

and Chair Exercise sessions we held and our planting workshop was very popular.  

This gave Community groups and organisations in the area an opportunity to showcase what 

their groups do and gave an opportunity to recruit new members for the clubs.  

Page 44



 

  

Afternoon Tea 

Dublin City Council Ballymun Community team organised an Afternoon Tea with Music in 

Axis Ballymun to celebrate Positive Ageing Week.  The Ballymun and Finglas Community 

teams joined forces and Ballymun and Finglas residents attended this successful event 

connecting the two communities.  It was really enjoyed by all with lots of dancing and 

singing. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



Positive Ageing/Social Inclusion 

To celebrate Positive Ageing/Social Inclusion, Ballymun Community and Social 

Development team organised an educational trip for the Poppintree Park Walking Group to 

the Donaghmore Workhouse and Portlaoise.  

 

  

 

3.Ballymun Otherworld Halloween Festival 
 
Otherworld Festival 

The annual outdoor Otherworld Halloween Festival is back and it’s bigger and better this 
year! 
Dublin City Council Community & Social Development team and Axis Ballymun are busy 
working behind the scenes. We are expecting this to be the best and most successful 
festival to date. 
The Otherworld Event will take place at the Ballymun Plaza on Tuesday 31st October from 
6pm to 9pm. 

This year we have so many attractions lined up including the amazing Circus Gerbola, extra 
Funfair rides, An Arts and Crafts area, Lil monsters block party tent, main stage 
entertainment and much more! Finishing off the night with a spectacular fireworks show! 

All the community are welcome to attend this fun, safe, family event. 

Page 46



 

The Halloween brochure will be distributed to the schools and community in the coming week 

and circulated on our social media platforms. .   

The schedule of events includes spooky activities and Halloween events that will take place 

leading up to Halloween from October 25th to 31st as detailed below: 

Terror in Trinity 

25th & 26th October, 6.30pm to 9.00pm, Trinity Comprehensive 

Walk through the haunted school.  Suitable for 12 years and up.  Booking via the school or 

text  

087 6530790. 

 

Witches’ Walk 

26th October, 10.30am, Poppintree Park 

Witches’ Walk followed by music and food in the Silloge Neighbourhood Centre.  No booking 

needed. 

 

Jackula 

27th October 7pm, Axis Ballymun 

Family show full of magic and laughs. 

Family Ticket (4 people) €36, or €10 each.  Ages 4-12 

 

Spooky Cinema 

28th October, 11am & 2pm €3 

Addams Family & Addams Family Values 

Tickets on www.axisballymun.ie or pop in to Axis 

 

Sensory Friendly Halloween 

31st October, 2pm to 4pm 

Sensory friendly experience in Axis for children and families with additional needs and sensory 

sensitivities.  Booking is essential.  Email reception@axisballymun.ie  

 

 

 

Page 47

http://www.axisballymun.ie/
mailto:reception@axisballymun.ie


Spooks Catwalk 

Schools Fancy Dress Competition.  Send your photos into ballymuncommunity@dublincity.ie 

by 31st October to enter the competition. 

 

Vampire Tours 

31st October, 11am to 4pm.  Suitable for 6-12 years.  Free but booking is essential on 

www.rediscoverycentre.ie . 

The resident vampires in the Rediscovery Centre are inviting you to explore their haunted 

Bat Cave and spooky Mad Scientist Lab. 

 

Glás Ghostly Garden and Haunted Pumpkin Patch 

31st October, 1pm to 4pm.  Booking via Global Action Plan at info@globalactionplan.ie  

The Glás Garden has turned spooky with story tellers, entertainment and pumpkin carving 

competition. 

 

Halloween Spooky Street Games 

The Easy Street Team are hitting the streets with traditional style Halloween Games and art 

with a spooky twist.  Contact Angie@starballymun.ie or 01 8832100. 

 

4.Economic Development Update 
 

 

Ballymun 4 business  

Eoin Murray Chartered Accountants 

delivered a workshop on 12th Sept 

about filing your Annual Return and 

your obligations as a sole trader / 

Limited Co.  Eoin shared information 

on useful accounting tools that can be 

used to manage your accounts and file 

your returns. During October, B4b held 

its Climate Action event 'Let's Do 

Better Together' 

#ReuseRepairRecycle in the 

Rediscovery Centre.  Hans Zomer 

from Global Action Plan informed 

members about the Climate Action 

Competition being rolled out for 

businesses and collaboration with B4b 

that will see businesses with less than 

5 employees take part for free and 

DCC sponsoring businesses with 5 or more to participate. The competition will run until 17th 

October and will see businesses competing to see who can reduce their carbon emission the 

most during this period. Other speakers on the evening included Emma Kavanagh from 

Community Resource Network Ireland.  Further information about the event will be available 

on the B4b website www.b4b.ie or contact Sabrina Morris info@b4b.ie  

 
 
 

Page 48

mailto:ballymuncommunity@dublincity.ie
http://www.rediscoverycentre.ie/
mailto:info@globalactionplan.ie
mailto:Angie@starballymun.ie
https://www.facebook.com/hashtag/reuserepairrecycle?__eep__=6&__cft__%5b0%5d=AZXvu6elUSAk2F2QsD2s_GeP_l1FF7XXrS19ddqV34FTGXpl9c5PvHRNqZRmWl1oZD0iS7lm-yh9-yp9_A0hAJAVGyOjw_fh5HvRdjYwYro6WX1uJ5F5FS5qPVq0icutgtTcAmrZuBxSVJrhY19jIJEcrOy8G7c91YMnEktdCdRFG0pvqFYr1eH12qYz1V_7pOk&__tn__=*NK-R
https://globalactionplan.ie/services/climatecompetition/
https://globalactionplan.ie/services/climatecompetition/
https://crni.ie/
http://www.b4b.ie/
mailto:info@b4b.ie


Ballymun Recruitment Fair  
There was a great turnout and interest in the 
Ballymun Recruitment Fair with Intreo which took 
place in the Civic Centre on 21st September.   
On the day there were a number of exciting job 
opportunities with organisations such as Dublin 
Bus, Irish Rail, Amazon and TUI as well as 
vacancies in the hospitality, healthcare and retail 
sectors. The Ballymun Job Centre and Dublin 
Northwest Partnership delivered workshops on 
interview skills and CV preparation.  
 
 
Climate Action - Ballymun DZ 
Another Ballymun DZ meeting took place during 
the month in the Rediscovery Centre. Codema 
presented on Ballymun carbon emissions and it 
is planned to host a ‘green conference’ in Trinity 
Comprehensive at the end of November that will 
be open to all members of the public who will 
learn about what we can all do to reduce our emissions and reach our 2030 carbon 
reduction targets. 
 
 
 
CoderDojo Ballymun 
The CoderDojo is continuing 
with 2 dojo’s running again. 
DCU have invited a number of 
our ‘junior-mentors’ to help 
design and participate in a 
‘Mini-Mentors camp’ in 
October.  A number of our 
older ninjas now mentor the 
younger ninjas. Photos shows 
a design session taking place 
with DCU facilitator. 
 
 
 
Social Enterprise Awards 
Ballymun female entrepreneur, Eileen McHugh, Hair Together Ireland and Rediscover 
Furniture were two of six social enterprise who picked up awards at the Dublin City Social 
Enterprise Awards last month in the Mansion House.  
 

 
Page 49



5.Housing Report 
   
Estate Management statistics for September 2023 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Rent Assessment statistics for September 2023 

 
Assessments/Calls/Emails 

848/579/1006 
 

 
Permissions To Reside 

3 

 
Refunds 

12 

 
Opening of Accounts 

2 
(including 0 sole/0 successions) 

 
 
Closing of Accounts 

8 
(including 0 sole/0 successions) 

Front Counter Calls 111 
 
Window Replacements 

6 

 
 

No of Anti- Social complaints per 1997 act Drug related  2 

No of Anti-Social complaints per 1997 act (Not Drug Related) 13 

No of other Complaints 13 

Total Complaints 28 

No of Anti-Social Interviews per 1997 act 6 

No of Other Interviews 4 

Total Interviews 10 

No Requests for mediation 0 

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action 0 

No of Section 20 Evictions 0 

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant 0 

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC 0 

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti-Social Behaviour 0 

No of Tenancy Warnings sent to Central Unit 0 

No of Court Orders Granted 0 

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges 0 

No of Warrants executed (Evictions) 0 

Page 50



 Ballymun Lettings January to September 2023 
 

Allocation Category  Housing List Transfer List Older Persons 

Bands 2 & 3 3 1 1 

Medical 1 0 0 

Welfare 0 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 

Transfer HAP 0 4 0 

De-tenanting 0 1 0 

Estate Management 0 3 0 

Maintenance 0 2 0 

Surrendering Larger 0 3 1 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 

Succession/Sole  10 0 0 

Transfer 0 0 1 

Inter-transfer 0 5 0 

Total 14 19 3 

 
Choice Based Lettings 

 

Allocation Category  
 

Housing Bands 2 & 3 11 

Transfer Bands 2 & 3 1 

Transfer HAP 0 

Medical 1 

Welfare 4 

Homeless 0 

Travellers 1 

Surrender larger 0 

Total 18 

 
Ballymun Voids September 2023 
  

Vacant Housing Units 
Address Type Date of 

Vacancy 
Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Baile Na Laochra 3 Bed House 13/08/2023 Issued to Contractor TBC 

Baile Na Laochra  3 Bed House  12/07/2023 Issued to Contractor 19/11/2023 

Balcurris Close 3 Bed House  07/09/2023 Issued to Contractor 14/12/2023 

Balcurris Park East 1 Bed Apartment  24/08/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/12/2023 

Belclare Drive  4 Bed House  25/08/2023 Issued to Contractor 01/12/2023 

Belclare Green 4 Bed House  25/08/2023 Issued to Contractor  17/11/2023 

Carton Court  1 Bed Apartment 19/06/2023 Issued to Contractor  Under Offer 

Carton Terrace 1 Bed Apartment 26/05/2023 Issued to Contractor  04/11/2023 

Coultry Grove  3 Bed House  10/08/2023 Issued to Contractor  22/11/2023 

Coultry Terrace 1 Bed Apartment 05/09/2023 Issued to Contractor 15/01/2024 

Doon Court  3 Bed House  25/06/2023 Issued to Contractor 07/11/2023  

Forestwood Avenue  1 Bed Apartment  02/07/2023 Issued to Contractor  26/10/2023 

Forestwood Avenue  3 Bed Apartment  08/05/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

Forestwood Avenue  3 Bed Apartment  08/05/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

Knowth Court  3 Bed House 26/07/2023 Issued to Contractor  15/12/2023 
Page 51



Knowth Court  3 Bed House 24/08/2023 Issued to Contractor 01/12/2023 

Marewood Crescent 1 Bed Apartment  05/09/2023 Vacant Possession/ Task 

Order to be prepared 

TBC 

The Plaza 2 Bed Apartment 19/07/2023 Issued to Contractor  21/11/2023 

The Plaza  2 Bed Apartment 22/08/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/12/2023 

The Plaza 2 Bed Apartment  10/08/2023 Issued to Contractor 04/11/2023 

The Plaza 2 Bed Apartment 19/07/2023 Issued to Contractor  21/11/2023 

Silloge Close  4 Bed House  28/07/2023 Issued to Contractor 22/12/2023 

Silloge Close  2 Bed Apartment  29/09/2023 Issued to Contractor 10/01/2024 

Silloge Way 1 Bed Apartment  29/09/2023 Issued to Contractor 10/01/2024 

Shangan Gardens 3 Bed House  29/09/2023 Issued to Contractor 06/01/2024 

Shangan Road  2 Bed Apartment  19/06/2023 Issued to Contractor 07/11/2023 

Whiteacre Crescent  2 bed house 21/06/2023 Issued to Contractor TBC 

     

  
  

Vacant Housing Units (more than 4 months) 

Address Type Date of 

Vacancy 
Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Carton  Road 4 Bed House 10/04/2022 Ongoing Estate 

Management Issues  

 

Coultry Avenue 3 Bed House  31/03/2023 Issued to Contractor  03/10/2023 

Dane Road 3 Bed House 15/02/2023 Issued to Contractor  09/10/2023 

Dolmen Way  2 Bed Apartment 07/12/2022 Issued to Contractor Under Offer 

Forestwood Ave 2 Bed Apartment 11/02/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment  21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment 21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment 21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment 21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment 21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Forestwood Avenue 2 Bed Apartment 21/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 20/10/2023 

CBL 

Owensilla 2 Bed Apartment 14/02/2023 Issued to Contractor Under Offer 

Shangan Gardens 3 Bed House 25/08//2022 Anti-social issues have 

delayed this unit. 

15/10/2023 

Whiteacre Close 2 Bed Apartment 03/08/2022 Snagging 21/10/2023 

Whiteacre Court 2 Bed House 21/02/2023 Issued to Contractor 10/11/2023 

Whiteacre Place 3 Bed House 11/01/2023 Issued to Contractor 023 CBL 

Woodhazel Terrace  2 Bed Apartment 31/05/2023 Issued to Contractor  01/10/2023 

Woodhazel Terrace 2 Bed Apartment 23/08/2022 Issued to Contractor 01/10/2023 

Woodhazel Terrace 2 Bed Apartment 19/04/2023 Issued to Contractor 01/10/2023 

  
  

Page 52



Vacant Senior Citizen Units 

Address Type Date of 

Vacancy 
Status Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Burren Court 1 Bed 19/02/2023 Direct Labour Under Offer 

Burren Court 1 Bed 16/04/2023 Issued to Contractor  Under Offer 

Burren Court 1 Bed 09/04/2023 Issued to Contractor Under Offer 

Burren Court 1 Bed 13/04/2023 Direct Labour Under Offer 

Burren Court  1 Bed  01/08/2023 Direct Labour 14/10/2023 

Burren Court  2 Bed  04/12/2023 Direct Labour  Under Offer 

Sandyhill Gardens  Bedsit  14/02/2023 Issued to Contractor  20/09/2023 

Sandyhill Gardens  1 Bed  22/06/2023 Direct Labour 10/11/2023 

Sandyhill Gardens  1 Bed  12/07/2023 Direct Labour 09/11/2023 

Sandyhill Gardens 1 Bed 06/09/2023 Direct Labour 11/11/2023 

Sandyhill Gardens  Bedsit  21/06/2023 Direct Labour  TBC  

Sandyhill Gardens Bedsit 06/09/2023 Direct Labour 06/11/2023 

     

 

 

Jackie O Reilly 

 Area Manager 

 

 

Page 53



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
 North West Area Committee. 
 
 
  Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
   Item No: 8 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
With reference to the proposed grant of a Short Term Business Letting of two 
amalgamated office units at ground floor level, Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun 
Dublin 
11_______________________________________________________________________ 
By way of licence dated the 1st October 2019 Dublin City Council granted a 3 year licence to 

The North Dublin Citizens Information Service CLG for the use of two amalgamated office 

units, at ground floor level, Ballymun Civic Centre. The last licence expired on 30th September 

2022 and terms and conditions have now been agreed in relation to the granting of a 3 year 

Short Term Business Letting.  The area to be let is shown outlined in red and coloured pink.  

The group have shared use of the area shown yellow on Map Index SM-2019-0338. 

 

It is therefore proposed to grant a 3 year Short Term Business Letting to The North Dublin 

Citizens Information Service CLG subject to the following Terms and Conditions which I 

consider to be fair and reasonable:  

 

1. That the subject property comprises a ground floor office unit shown outlined in red 
and shaded pink plus, shared use of the area coloured yellow, on the attached copy 
map SM-2019-0338. 
 

2. That Dublin City Council shall grant a three year Short Term Business Letting from 
the 1 October 2022. 

 
3. That the commercial letting fee shall be €10,400 (ten thousand & four hundred euro) 

(VAT not applicable) per annum.  
 

4. That the subject property shall be used solely as a Public Information Centre with a 
minimum of 25 (twenty five) public opening hours per week: 9.30 am to 12.30 pm x 5 
mornings plus 2.00 pm to 4.30 pm x 4 afternoons. 

 
5. That the lessee shall pay an abated letting fee of €200 (two hundred euro) (VAT not 

applicable) per annum, payable annually in advance by standing order or electronic 
funds transfer, provided term 4 above is fully complied with, otherwise the 
commercial letting fee shall be payable.  

 
6. That the lessee shall be responsible for the payment of rates, facilities/service 

charges, utilities, building insurance, waste collection, taxes and all other charges for 
the letting area.   

 

Page 54



7. That the lessee shall indemnify Dublin City Council against any and all claims arising 
from its use of the property.  Public Liability Insurance (minimum of €6.5 million) and 
Employers Liability Insurance (minimum of €13 million) shall be required.  

 
8. That this letting is personal to the North Dublin Citizens Information Service CLG and 

the lessee shall not assign, sublet or part with possession of the property or any part 
thereof. 
 

9. That the letting may be terminated by either party upon giving one month’s prior 
written notice.  
 

10. That the lessee shall be responsible for internal repairs including all plate glass.  
 

11. That the lessee shall keep and yield up the licensed area clean and tidy. 
 

12. That the lessee shall not carry out any structural alterations to the property. 
 

13. That the lessee shall sign a Deed of Renunciation of renewal rights.  
 

14. That the lessee shall abide by all protocols, systems and procedures laid down by 
Dublin City Council and the Building Managers of the Ballymun Civic Centre.  
 

15. That each party shall be responsible for their own fees and costs incurred in this 
matter. 
 

The Short Term Business Letting shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as 

the Law Agent in her discretion shall stipulate. 

 

No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 

contracts has taken place. 

Máire Igoe    
Acting Executive Manager 

Page 55



 
Page 56



 
 
  The Chairman and Members of 
   North West Area Committee. 
 
 
   Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
   Item No: 9 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 Community Grants Scheme and Informal Adult Education Scheme 20223 

 

Applications for financial assistance have been received from a number of bodies under the City 

Council's Community Grants Scheme 2023 and Informal Adult Education Grant Scheme 

These applications have been assessed in the context of available finance, value to the community 

and compliance with the relevant policies and objectives of the Council and in particular with 

relevance to the Social Inclusion Strategy. 

Set out below are details of the applications together with recommendations in relation to the 

amount of grant assistance for each applicant body. 

It is recommended that Dublin City Council make the grants to the groups as set out in the report 

below.  

There is provision in the 2023 budget to meet this expenditure. 

Finglas Community Grants 2023 

Name of Group Amount Requested Amount Granted 

St. Canices Bowls €1,200.00 €800.00 

Order of Malta Ballygall €1,500.00 €600.00 

Fairways Residents  €1,200.00 €400.00 

Griffith Heights Res €1,500.00 €400.00 

Dublin Brigade Vol. €1,500.00 €600.00 

The Yard Club €1,500.00 €600.00 

Lakeglen Residents €500.00 €400.00 

Scribblestown Res €1,500.00 €400.00 

Finglas Parochial NS €1,500.00 €500.00 

Erins Isle All Stars €1,500.00 €750.00 

Sr. Sheds Evening €1,350.00 €400.00 

Stephen Moylan €1,500.00 €600.00 

Wellmount Cres Res €1,500.00 €400.00 

Finglas Responders €1,500.00 €750.00 

The Den Youth Group €1,500.00 €600.00 

Griffith Cres Res €500.00 €400.00 

Finglas West Scouts €1,500.00 €500.00 

Finn Eber Res €1,500.00 €400.00 

Griffith Area Comm Ass €1,500.00 €1000.00 

Page 57



Mellowes Park Jr, Run €1,000.00 €600.00 

Finglas Historical €1,500.00 €600.00 

Meeting Place Club €1.400.00 €600.00 

Tolka Rovers Basketball €1,500.00 €500.00 

St, Canices Court Res €400.00 €300.00 

Finglas Childcare CLG €1,000.00 €00.00 

Finglas Counselling Services €1,500.00 €1500.00 

The Fuse YC €1,500.00 €500.00 

St, Josephs PA €1,500.00 €600.00 

Glenhill Music Shed €600.00 €400.00 

Granny’s & Grandad’s €1,000.00 €400.00 

Meeting Place Club €800.00 €500.00 

Early Bird Breakfast €1,000.00 €600.00 

Parents & Toddler  €1.000.00 €600.00 

Ballygall Women’s Group  €1.000.00 €500.00 

Glasilawn Ave, Res €300.00 €300.00 

Barry Park Environment €1,500.00 €500.00 

Finglas Tidy Towns €1,450.00 €1,000.00 

Finglas Men.s Shed €1,500.00 €400.00 

Finglas Maypole Legends €1,500.00 €500.00 

Ballygall Community Cl €1,500.00 €1000.00 

Sr, Sheds (Morning) €1,500.00 €400.00 

Erins Isle Le Cheile €1,500.00 €500.00 

Community Music Col €1,500.00 €600.00 

Pavee Point €1,500.00 €600.00 

Dean Swift Fun Day €900.00 €500.00 

Finglas Racing Pigeon Club €1,500.00 €500.00 

75TH Finglas Scouts €1,200.00 €500.00 

Kilshane Court Res €1,500.00 €400.00 

Glasnevin Downs Res €1,000.00 €400.00 

   

Total Requested €62,900 €30.000 

 

Finglas Informal Adult Education Grants 2023 

Name of Group Amount Requested Amount Granted 

Finglas Responders €800.00 €800.00 

Fuse Youth Club €600.00 €600.00 

Ballygall Womens Group €400.00 €400.00 

Morning Sr. Sheds €800.00 €800.00 

   

Total Requested €2,600 €2,600 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



Ballymun Community Grants 2023  

Name of Group Reason Amount 

Requested 
Amount 

Granted 

Eggheadz 

Cost of room hire 
and facilitator and 
cost of materials  €1460 0 

Eggheadz 

Cost of room hire 
and facilitator and 
cost of materials  €1460 0 

Eggheadz 
Cost of room hire 
and facilitator €1250 0 

Recovery Road Cycling Club 
Supplies for 
recovery cycle €1200 €400 

13-24 Cromlech Court 
Environmental Group 

Maintenance of 
general area, 
planting etc. €500 €400 

Recovery Road Cycling Club Trip €1500 0 

Baile na Laochara Residents 
Association 

Plants, pots, tools 
etc. €1500 €400 

Ballymun Child and Family 
Resource Centre 

Homework Club 
Programme €1000 €500 

Ballymun Regional Youth 
resource (Community/ 
Detached youth work team) 

Manual handling, 
safepass courses for 
young adults €1500 0 

Ballymun Youth Action 
Project 

Womens Recovery 
Café supplies €705 €200 

Ballymun Regional Youth 
Resource 

Bus costs, 
refreshments etc. €1500 0 

Ballymun Youth Action 
Project 

Advertising, 
cleaning, running of 
café €1400 0 

Ballymun Photography Group 

fund workshops , 
field trips and 
tuitions costs €1500 €600 

Ballymun Mens Centre Group 

Costs for weekly 
meetings, social and 
educational trips €1500 €600 

Dolmen Way Residents 
Environmental Group  

Environmental & 
upkeep of courts €1500 €400 

Cumann Báire Setanta 
sports equipment , 
sports day, literature €1500 €600 

Sallowood view 
environmental  

servicing, hanging 
baskets, planters €1020 €400 

National learning network 
Workshops, classes 
etc €1500 €200 

Belclare Park Residents 
Association 

Service of 
lawnmower, tools 
equipments etc €1230 €400 

St. Pappins Bowls Club 
Equipment 
maintenance €1300 €600 

Page 59



Poppintree Environmental 
Project 

Community Garden 
Maintenance €1500 €400 

Virgin Mary schools  Yoga  equipment €1500 €400 

Poppintree Youth Project 
Hairdressing course 
- 8 weeks €1500 €600 

The  Reco Youth Centre  Outside Zen space €1300 €300 

200th Scouts Dublin  
Materials, first aid 
course €1500 €600 

The Ballymun Men’s Shed 
Association 

Course in vegetable 
growing and garden 
maintenance €300 0 

The Ballymun Men’s Shed 
Association Woodwork course €1500 €600 

City Farm and Community 
Gardens Ballymun 

Plants, animal 
transport and 
entertainment €1500 €400 

Ballymun United Football 
Club 

Football equipment, 
training 
programmes, goals 
etc. €1500 €600 

U3A 

Educational tours, 
events, day trips, 
refreshments €1000 €600 

Coultry Way Tidy Road 
Committee 

Planters, hanging 
baskets, compost 
and tools €1000 €400 

Belclare Avenue  
Equipment and 
plants for upkeep €1200 €400 

Ballymun Food Forum 

cooking workshops, 
supper evenings 
and informative 
material €1500 €300 

St. Margaret's Preschool  

Equipment and 
lighting for new 
sensory room €1500 €400 

Belclare Grove Upper 
Environmental Group 

Equipment and 
supplies €1500 €400 

Ballymun Child and Family 
Resource Centre 

3 camps throughout 
the year for 
schoolchildren €1000 €400 

BALLYMUN Racing Pigeon 
Club 

Travel costs and 
equipment to do 
with racing €1500 €600 

Belclare Community Garden 
Equipment, plants 
etc. €1381 €400 

Ballymun Regional Youth 
Resource (Community/ 
Detached youth work team) 

Motor Traffic harm 
reduction 
programme -  €1000 €400 

Northside Sensations 

Insurance , tutor and 
travel to musical 
event €750 €600 

Ard na meala Balcurris  
Equipment, 
maintenance of area €1500 €400 

Page 60



Cromlech Court  
Court maintenance 
and environmental €400 €400 

Poppy lane  
Pots, flowers and 
bee hotel. €600 €400 

The Busy Lizzies  
Equipment, tools 
and plants. €450 €400 

Ballymun Kickhams all stars 

Clothing, equipment 
and social outings 
for club members. €1500 €500 

Naionra Glor na Ngael 

Mulch, planting, 
seeds and 
equipment €685 €200 

Silloge Gardens Residents  
Upkeep of area, 
planting etc. €1500 €400 

Our Lady of Victories Boys 
National School 

Wooden planters, 
topsoil and 
gardening 
equipment for 
children €1500 €400 

Gossip girls 

Upkeep of 
community and 
purchasing tools €800 €400 

St. Pappins Pastoral Centre 

Timber plants, tools, 
equipment for 
gardening and 
planting €1500 €300 

Virgin Mary Boys and Girls 
Schools  

Yoga, mats etc.  2 
informal education 
grants already 
approved    

Upper Belclare Lawns  
New lawnmower , 
tools and plants. €1500 €400 

Silloge gardens residents  

Plants cleaning 
landscaping 
supplies and upkeep 
of area. €1500 0 

Ballymun Writers group  

Photocopying and 
materials necessary 
for the running of 
the group €1500 €400 

Star Project  

Walkin support 
space in Axis and 
facilitate six week 
holistic programme €1500 €600 

Ballymun Youth Action 
Project  

Clothing, breakfasts 
and shower facilities €1500 €200 

Ballymun Active Disability 
Interest Group (BADIG) 

Host 3 public 
meetings, to share 
information etc €700 €600 

Ballymun Socials 
Social outings  and 
events for the group €700 €600 

Poppintree Early Education 
Centre 

Parenting courses/ 
rental of parenting 
room €1500 €300 

Page 61



St Margaret’s Traveller 
Community Association 

Environmental and 
community evets €1500 €600 

Crafts & Chat Group Pottery Workshop €550 0 

Crafts & Chat Group Trip €850 0 

Crafts & Chat Group 
Flower Arranging 
Class €900 €600 

The Sillogue Neighbourhood 
Centre 

Tutor to deliver art 
classes €650 €600 

THE GOLDEN AGE 
COMMUNITY GROUP 

Funding for social 
trips and supplies €1500 €600 

Ballymun Regional Youth 
resource (Community/ 
Detached youth work team) Medals, barriers etc.   €1500 0 

Ballymun Regional Youth 
Resource (Community/ 
Detached team) 

Josh Dunne 
Memorial Football 
Tournament 
Trophies  €600 €300 

The Rediscovery Centre Education Workshop €1500 €300 

Kerala Badminton Club 
(Juniors) 

Court hire, supplies 
and equipment €1500 €500 

Joe's Patch 
Upkeep, planting 
and maintenance €1500 €400 

The Sillogue Neighbourhood 
Centre Planting €400 0 

Kerala Badminton Club 
(Adults) 

Court hire, supplies 
and equipment €1500 0 

The Sillogue Ladies Club 

Activities, events, 
outings for group 
members €500 €500 

The Sillogue Ladies Club  

Bus Hire and social 
event for members 
around Christmas €1000 0 

Solas Development Centre 

Bus Hire and social 
event for members 
around Christmas €1000 €400 

The Sillogue Neighbourhood 
Centre 

Christmas Event 
with food and music €600 0 

Ballymun Kickhams GAC 

Standalone dressing 
room for 
storage/club shop €1500 €500 

Our Lady of Victories Infant 
School 

Books in each 
language for 
different cultures €1500 €400 

Sports Across Ireland 

Sports equipment 
and fun 
days/festivals/camps €1500 €400 

Woodhazel Head bangers 

Wildflowers, hanging 
baskets and bee 
friendly planting €1500 €400 

Page 62



Creative heArts 

Paints supplies and 
equipment for 
classes €1500 0 

T.C. Growers 

To grow their own 
vegetables, poly 
tunnel, water in 
Trinity Comp 
Garden €1500 €400 

Norah and Josies Kitchen 
Ingredients for 
classes  €1500 0 

Men's Networking Resource 
Centre of Ireland Ltd 

Funding for 
provision of clothing, 
toys for children 
visiting the centre €1000 €400 

Ballymun Youth Action 
Project 

Yoga classes, 6 
weeks programme €1500 €300 

Ballymun Ladies' Club 

Producing monthly 
newsletter, admin 
costs, subsided 
subscriptions & 
insurance 1€200 €600 

The Druids 

Maintain and create 
new flowerbeds, 
planters €1500 €400 

        

 Total   104541 30000 

 

Ballymun Adult Grants 

Group Name  Priority  Amount 
Recommended 

Norah and Josie’s Kitchen  Health and Wellbeing €800 

St Margaret’s Traveller Community 
Association 

Social Inclusion and 
Inter Culturalism 

€800 

Virgin Mary Boys and Girls School   Health and Wellbeing €800 

 Creative heArts  Development of 
Communities & Active 
Citizenship 

€800 

The Golden Age Community Group   Development of 
Communities & Active 
Citizenship 

€800 

Ballymun Active Disability Interest Group 
(BADIG) 

Development of 
Communities & Active 
Citizenship 

€800 

Ballymun Library writers  Art, Culture and 
Heritage 

€800 

200th Dublin Scouts  Youth  €800 

Virgin Mary schools   Youth  €800 

 

Frank d’Arcy 

Frank d’Arcy 

Assistant Chief Executive 

 

Page 63



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
 Item No: 10 

 
 

PUBLIC DOMAIN REPORT 

 

 

Waste Management and Illegal Dumping 

 

Illegal Dumping incidents for September   246 
 

Community Clean Ups for September    75   

 

Graffiti removal September 

In September 265 sq. meters of graffiti was removed in North West Area. 
To date 1178 sq. meters of graffiti has been removed during the period of January 2023 to 
September 2023.  
We are expecting an increase for the month of October with Halloween approaching and we 
will deal with each issue as quickly as possible.  Extra resources will be in place over the 
next few weeks to handle the extra volume of work. 
 

Halloween 

The Public Domain Team are working closely with the Garda and other DCC departments to 
arrange for the collection of bonfire material prior to and on the day of Halloween. Additional 
resources have been secured to assist with the clearing of bonfires in the NWA over the 
Halloween weekend.  Social media posts from the North West Area will be delivered on a 
regular basis in the coming weeks, and we will be posting daily reminders to report 
stockpiling in the days leading up to Halloween.   
 
The following channels for reporting can be used:  

 DCC Self Service Portal https://citizenhub.dublincity.ie/WasteManagement  

 Finglas Area please call: 01 2225457/01 2225412/01 2226754 

 Ballymun Area please call: 01 2225715/01 2225742 

 Email nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie/Customerservices@dublincity.ie 

 Bonfire material can also be reported after hours to 01 – 6796186. 

Teams will be on the ground from Saturday 22st to Tuesday 31st to remove any stockpiling 
of bonfire materials. 
 

 

Page 64

https://citizenhub.dublincity.ie/WasteManagement
mailto:nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie
mailto:Customerservices@dublincity.ie


Anti-Dumping Initiative 

The NWA was allocated € 12243.09 in funding year 2023.  The Public Domain Team 
coordinated the Mattress and WEEE Amnesty Days as part of this project.   
Two separate events were held to promote the reduction of Electrical Waste and Mattresses.  
One in Finglas Civic Offices, Mellowes Road, Finglas, D. 11 and one in Ballymun (Trinity 
Comprehensive School), Main Street, Ballymun, D 9. The events were held over 4 hours 
each day on the 16th & 23rd September, 2023 and proved to be very successful. 
Recycle IT recorded over 1000 Items, 4.343 Tonnes of Electrical waste was removed.  Over 
200 Mattresses where collected. We are hopeful that this will reduce the number of 
mattresses dumped and discarded over the Halloween period. It also promotes the recycling 
message at a more local level.    

  

  

Weeding 
The weeding contractor has completed their contract for 2023 in the North West Area.  The 
use of acetic acid and its efficacy will be reviewed by the Public Domain Officers citywide 
and recommendations will be made to improve the service in 2024.   
In the meantime additional weed control resources have been allocated to the areas. 
Particularly overgrown areas will be serviced by Contractors and in-house staff by manual 
removal.  

Page 65



Leaf Collection Scheme 

 

The Public Domain Team has recently received new biodegradable leaf collection bags. The 
obvious advantage of a biodegradable bag is its capacity to entirely decompose into natural 
components, which can reduce the breakdown time to as little as 90 days in some situations. 
Compostable bags have numerous other advantages such as lowering landfill contributions.  
In addition, there are fewer greenhouse gas emissions and lower water and energy usage 
during manufacturing. When composted properly, compostable bags are safer for humans, 
animals, nature and the environment and they provide excellent fertiliser. These new 
compostable bags have been distributed to groups and can be ordered through the following 
channels:  
 
Finglas Area please call: 01 2225457/01 2225412/01 2226754 
Ballymun Area please call: 01 2225715/01 2225742 or 
email nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie  
 

Leaf composting course 
The Public Domain Unit successfully ran two leaf composting courses in conjunction with 
doctor compost at the locations Willow Park Grove Finglas and Belclare Lawns Ballymun. 
Composting is a fantastic way of re-purposing waste and creating peat-free and nutrient-rich 
compost for growing. It's about re-connecting with the earth and going back to our roots. 
For a long time horticulture and growing has depended on peat-compost. We have seen the 
devastation this has had on our bogs and peatlands. 
We need to transition away from peat-compost and embrace alternatives.  Composting is a 
great start. Watch our event to hear how you can act to save peatlands. 
 

  
 
Robert Ingram  
Public Domain Officer 
 

Page 66

mailto:nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie


 
 
       The Chairman and Members of 
        North West Area Committee. 
 
 
        Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
         Item No: 11 
 
 

NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE  

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT 

OCTOBER 2023 

 

  
 
2023 – Linking in with National Events & Initiatives 

The primary goal of Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing (DCSWP) is to provide opportunities for 

everyone to get involved in sport & physical activity regardless of age, gender or ability. In 

2023 DCSWP continues to align the planning and delivery of programmes with national and 

international events. This strategic approach helps maximise promotion of the service, adds 

momentum to local programmes and initiatives and ultimately increases reach across 

communities in Dublin City.  

Please see below highlight programmes for October 2023.  

Staffing News 

Sport Officer (x2) and Sport Inclusion and Integration Officer roles (x 2.  3 year temporary) 

have been advertised.  Closing date for application was 12 September. The 

Shortlisting/Eligibility/Interview process is to follow shortly.  

Marathon Kids 2023  
 

Marathon Kids Is an 8 week physical education program covering daily short runs, physical 

& mental health education, nutrition, exercise and lots of fun. The programmes is a national 

initiative aimed at primary school students at 4th, 5th and 6th class level.  David Gillick, 

ambassador for Marathon Kids visited the 50+ schools (including schools from the North 

West area) participating in this year’s programme during European Week of Sport/Dublin 

Sportsfest 2023. 

 
 
 
 

Page 67



 
DCSWP SIMS (School Information Management System) For Schools Motor Sport 
Programme Highlight Programme  

 
DCSWP and Active Cities, in partnership with Nicci Daly and Formula Female, launched the 
Dublin City Council SIM For Schools Program across five schools in each administrative area 
during European Week Of Sport/ Sportsfest 2023. The programme engages transition year 
classes in girls’ schools providing the opportunity to take part in this novel motorsport 
programme, utilising simulator rigs that DCSWP has purchased. The programme is delivered 
by Nicci Daly. Nicci is a Member of the Ladies Hockey Team who won the Silver Medal at the 
2018 World Cup, and was a member of the team that represented Ireland at the 2020 Olympics 
in 2020. Nicci’s family is steeped in the Irish motorsport history, and Nicci herself worked as a 
data engineer for Juncos Racing in Indycar from 2016. In the USA Nicci has developed a 
programme aimed at introducing motorsport opportunities for school aged girls, while also 
overlapping and interweaving stem elements that will compliment academic curriculums, using 
the interactive platform of simulator rigs.  

 
This new and exciting DCSWP programme runs for 6 weeks, as students work through a 
progressive curriculum with overlapping interweaved elements, developing technical 
knowhow, racing skills, team promotion and design. There will be ongoing friendly competition 
as well as a final event between the schools. There is also potential opportunity for final 
participants to participate in a high profile final event at Gamer Fest 2023 in the RDS, as well 
as experiential finish day in Mondello with actual in-car experience. The Programme has also 
been approached by TG4 who want to do a piece on the programme and organisations such 
as Curry’s/World who are interested in further sponsoring the programme.  

 
 In the North West Area (NWA) the six-week programme was launched in Trinity 

Comprehensive, Ballymun on Friday 29th September.  
 

Sport for Young People Small Grant Scheme 2023  

170 applications have been received from clubs across the city including the North Central 
Area (closing date 2nd June 2023). Sport Ireland Contribution for 2023 is €80,000. The first 
phase of the assessment is complete with phase two in progress.  
 
This is a priority for DCSWP and clubs will be notified in the coming weeks. Once confirmed, 
a list of NWA clubs can be provided for the committees’ information on request.  
 

Active Cities (Citywide) 

 BoxUp 

 

As part of the Active Cities Dublin initiative the Sports Partnership have purchased two 

Boxup storage stations to be used for storing sports equipment in outdoor parks.  

These unique stations are designed to store a variety of sports and exercise equipment that 

can be accessed by the public free of charge for up to three hours. The user downloads the 

Boxup app on their phone which then enables them to choose the sporting equipment they 

would like to borrow. The locker is then opened and the equipment made available to them.  

The App, which is registered to the user using a document of identification provides user 

data and feedback.  

Page 68



The Boxups will provide more opportunities for people of all abilities to get active and will 

encourage increased use of parks sporting facilities and open spaces units have to date 

been placed in Mt Bernard Park, Cabra and Sundrive Park, Kimmage as part of the pilot city 

parks roll out.  

(https://www.dcswphub.ie/boxup-comes-to-ireland).  
 
The official Launch of BoxUp took place on Wednesday 4th October at 2.30pm in Eamonn 
Ceannt Park, Crumlin.   
 

 
Social Media/Communication 
 

All DCSWP highlighted programmes will continue to be supported by social media channels 

and the DCSWP Virtual Hub.  

 

 Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Virtual Hub: www.dcwsphub.ie  

 Email: sports@dublincity.ie 

 Twitter: @dccsportsrec   

 Facebook: DublinCitySportandWellbeing 

 Instagram: @dublincitysportandwellbeing 

 

NWA Ongoing Core DCSWP Programme Highlights October 2023 

Underactive Communities 

Name of core programme: Get Dublin Walking  

 Description of programme activity:  Walking programme aimed at underactive 
adults  

Age group: Adults  

Gender: Mixed 

Date/time and location: Ongoing Every Thursday from 10.30am in 
Poppintree Park  

 

Name of core programme: Adult General Fitness Classes  

 Description of programme activity:  Multi-Sport/Activity Classes supporting 
underactive adults to build fitness levels 
and build sustainable pathways to health 
and fitness.  

Age group: Adults  

Gender: Mixed 

Date/time and location: Ongoing very Wednesday in Ballymun 
United Grounds and every Tuesday in 
Poppintree Community & Sports Centre  

 

Page 69

http://www.dcswphub.ie/
http://www.dcswphub.ie/
file://///dccdata/cande/Shared/EandC/Sport%20&%20Wellbeing%20Partnership/Communications/Area%20Committee%20Reports/Reporting%202022/South%20East%20Area/sports@dublincity.ie
file://///dccdata/cande/Shared/EandC/Sport%20&%20Wellbeing%20Partnership/Communications/Area%20Committee%20Reports/Reporting%202022/South%20East%20Area/sports@dublincity.ie
https://twitter.com/dccsportsrec


 

Older Adults (Age 55 years +) 

Name of core programme: Senior Citizens Yoga Classes 

 Description of programme activity:  Yoga Programme to improve movement, 
flexibility and mobility  

Age group: Adults age 55+ years 

Gender: Mixed 

Date/time and location: Ongoing. Every Monday from 1pm in 
Poppintree Youth & Fitness Centre.  

 

 

 

Name of core programme: Older Adult Active Retirement 

 Description of programme activity:  Targeting Active Retirement Groups 
including those in Finglas East area 

Age group: Adults age 55+ years 

Gender: Mixed 

Date/time and location: Ongoing in Ballygall Community Centre.  

 

 

Name of core programme: Aqua Aerobics 

 Description of programme activity:  Eight week programme deliverd in 
partnership with DCSWP Co-funded 
Swimming Officer 

Age group: Adults age 55+ years 

Gender: Mixed 

Date/time and location: Ongoing every Tuesday 2-3pm Finglas 
Sports & Fitness every.  

 

 

GAGA (Get All Girls Active) - Women in Sport  

Name of Core Programme  Powerlifting Programme 

Age group: 15-17 years 

Gender: Females 18+ years 

Partners (If any):  

Date/time and location: Ongoing.  Every Thursday from 5pm in 
Poppintree Sports & Fitness Centre  

 

Name of Core Programme:  GAGA Multi-Sport Programme 

Decription of Programme Activity: Six week programme in partnership with 
existing groups in area.  

Age group: 18+ years 

Gender: Females  

Date/time and location: Start Date TBC  

 

 

Page 70



Thrive – People With Physical, Intellectual and Sensory Disabilities 

Description of programme activity:  Spina Bifida Hydrocephalus Ireland 
(SBHI) Programme 

Age group: 18+ years 

Gender: Mixed 

Partners (If any): Exercises and activity programme aimed at 
adults with physical challenges.   

Date/time and location: Ongoing. Every Wednesday in Poppintree 
Sport & Fitness Centre  

 

Youth At Risk - 10-21 years. Aimed at providing viable opportunities for young people in 
the NWA to stay active and thereby mitigate anti-social behaviour). All programmes are 
delivered in partnership with local NWA groups and Youth Services. 

 

Description of programme activity:  Teen Basketball 

Age group: 13-17 years 

Gender: Mixed 

Partners (If Any):  Trinity Comprehensive, Ballymun 

Date/time and location: Ongoing every Sunday from 11am-1pm in 
Poppintree Sports & Fitness Centre 
 

 

Sport Inclusion & Integration – Individuals With Physical, Intellectual and Sensory 

Disabilities 

The following programmes are delivered on a citywide basis and include partners and 

participants from the NWA: 

 

Name of programme: St. Michael’s House, Ballymun Multi-Sport 

Programme 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Programme aimed at service users from multiple 

services age 16 years + experiencing mental health 

difficulties. Delivered in Partnership with St. 

Michael’s House, Ballymun. Start date 13 October 

Name of programme: Shelbourne Football For All Programme 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Programme aimed at service users from multiple 

services age 16 years + experiencing mental health 

difficulties.  

 

 

 

Page 71



Name of programme: Ukrainian Crisis Centre Programme 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Multi-sport initiative aimed at all ages. Existing 

programmes such as the Track Partnership in 

Sundrive Park to continue 

 

Name of programme: Child Vision Ireland Tai Chi Programme 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Six-Eight week programme aimed at children. 

Delivered in partnership with Childvision, 

Drumcondra 

 

Name of programme: Learn 2 Cycle/Cycle With Confidence 

Programme 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Targeted at persons with physical and cognitive 

needs. Citywide programme.  

 

 

Name of programme: Sim For Schools/Formula Female 

 Description of programme 

activity : 

Motorsports progamme designed to integrate stem 

learnings with school curriculums. Targeted at 

teenage girls.  Programme to focus on progressing 

to completion level and final event (see start of 

report) 

  

Health Improvement Programmes in the NWA 

 

 OTAGO Strength & Balance programme targeted at Older Adults. Tuesdays at 12 

noon in Poppintree Sports & Fitness Centre 

 Falls Management, Poppintree - Strength & Balance programme targeted at Older 

Adults. Tuesdays at 1pm in Poppintree Sports & Fitness Centre 

 Move For Health, Poppintree – Strength & Balance programme targeted at Older 

Adults. Tuesdays at 2pm in Poppintree Sports & Fitness Centre 

 Pulmonary Rehabilitation Programme, Finglas – programme targeted at Adults with 

Chronic Pulmonary Obstructive Disease. Tuesdays and Thursdays, Finglas Sports & 

Fitness Centre 

 

Page 72



 

DCSWP NWA Co-Funded Programmes 

Athletics in the Community 

Couch to 3/5k and walking programmes continue in the NWA area in partnership with the 

Co-funded Athletic Officers. Officers continue to engage with schools in the Daily Mile and 

school track and field programmes. As above the Marathon Kids programmes continues in 

primary schools in the NWA area.  

Boxing in the Community  

The Startbox Initiative, a partnership between the IABA and Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing 
Partnership, represents an ideal way for young people (10 – 17 years) to first engage with 
amateur boxing, Ireland’s most successful Olympic sport. It is delivered by our 5 dedicated 
IABA/DCSWP Development Officers via local schools (primary & TY level) in communities 
across the Dublin City area. Approx 2,000 young people take part each year. 
 
The Programme is structured into Bronze (non contact), Silver and Gold phases. The first 

phase focuses on general strength & fitness, method and technique. The Silver Programme 

consists of higher intensity sessions & limited contact and the Gold phase takes it to another 

level (combination of first two levels and progression to contact). 

The programme has expanded over the years to include young participants from 7 – 10 

years (second class +) 

 The StartBox Bronze programme is currently being rolled out in schools by the NWA 

Boxing Development Officer. The Silver stage of the programme will commence in 

St. Joseph’s National school, Ballymun from Tuesday 24th October (four 

programmes)  

Cricket in the Community 

 The DCSWP Cricket Officer continues to support inclusive programmes and engage 

with the following NWA primary schools/youth centres via softball cricket introductory 

sessions.  

 Sunshiny Youth Centre, Finglas. Wednesdays from 5-6pm 

 St. Brigid’s GNS, Finglas. Wednesdays from 1-2pm 

Football in the Community 

 Late Night Leagues  

 Late Night leagues form part of the DCSWP/FAI Youth at Risk Programme which aims to 

mitigate anti-social behaviour by providing social/sporting outlets for young people. In the 

NWA programmes will recommence in October every Tuesday (males age 10-14 years from 

25 October), Wednesdays (females age 10-14 years from 26 October) in various FC clubs in 

the Finglas area and on Fridays  in Trinity Comprehensive, Ballymun (mixed age 12-16 

years from 29 September)  from 9-11pm. The leagues are delivered in partnership with An 

Garda Síochána and local Youth Services.  

Page 73



 

 

 Girls Future Stars Programme 

The Future Stars programme, Finglas is targeted at young female’s age 8-12 years.  Its aim 

is to encourage young females to participate and form pathways to local clubs.  The 

programmes is delivered in partnership with Rivermount FC every Wednesday.  

 Futsal In The Yard programme 

This is a six week indoor programme aimed at primary school students age 10-12 years in 

the Finglas area. 

 Football Against Racism 

This intercultural programme is currently being delivered in schools in the NWA to coincide 

with European Football against Racism Week (commenced 16th October). The initiative 

focuses on in-class education followed by sessions which give young people practical skills 

on how to deal with racism.     

 Disney Playmakers Programme 

This programme target young females age 4-7 years. The programme is delivered in 

Ballymun United every Saturday from 10-11am.  

 FAI Coaching 
 

 FAI 9 v 9 Workshops continue aimed at young people age 16+ years.  Workshops 

are delivered every Wednesday from 6pm I Leisure Point, Finglas South 

 PDP 1, 7X7 and 9X9 coaching continues in Coláiste Íde and PDP 1 in Trinity 

Comprehensive, Ballymun.  

 Football For All (Disability) 
 
The National Learning Network Blitz days continue once a month in Clontarf pitches. 
The citywide programme is aimed at encouraging participation in the sport for adults 
with additional needs (includes participants from the NWA).   
 

Rowing in the Community 

The Get Going Get Rowing indoor rowing schools programme continues in schools across 

Dublin City.  

Rugby in the Community 

 School Development  

 The Rugby Development Officer continues to focus on the delivery of programmes at on first 

year level. Eight classes in three NWA schools are currently being delivered on a weekly 

basis:  

Page 74



 

 Newcross College, Finglas West 

 Beneavin De La Salle College, Ballygall,  

 St. Kevin’s College, Ballygall 

These schools will compete in a first year blitz at the end of October. In late October and into 

November and December focus will be on reviewing the programme in schools listed above 

and introducing a new development programme to primary schools in the NWA.  

 Inclusion   

Rugby programmes previously rolled out in S. Michaels, Finglas will resume following the 

mid-term/Halloween break.  

 Youth At Risk 

The Monday Night Rugby programme is delivered in partnership with Poppintree Youth 

Project and will continue until Christmas. Following the programmes’ success, plans are 

currently being put in place to partner with other NWA youth projects and develop links.  

 Division 4 Rugby 

 In November and December the Rugby Development Officer will revisit I will be getting in 

contact with all the 1st year groups who are now at second year level to scope out interest in 

progressing to  full contact division 4 rugby. In many cases this will be the first time these 

schools have entered competitive competition. It is hoped that building these pathways will 

lead to school representation in the 2023 council cup.  

Swimming in the Community 

DCC/DCSWP appointed a Co-funded Swimming Ireland Development Officer in 2022 to 

increase opportunities for everyone in our communities to get involved with swimming and 

enjoy the benefits of water based physical activities. A new DCSWP Swimming 

Development Officer was appointed over the summer 2023 period. Details of programmes 

and initiatives will be included in the next area report.  

Training for 2023 (Citywide) 

 Safeguarding 1,2 & 3 (delivered on an on-demand basis) 

 
CONTACT DETAILS: 
 

Name Role Contact Information 

Aideen O’Connor Programmes & Services 

Manager, DCSWP 

aideen.oconnor@dublincity.e 

Colin Sharkey Office Manager, DCSWP colin.sharkey@dublincity.ie 

Paul Donnelly ]Sport Officer, DCSWP paul.donnelly@dublincity.ie 

John McDonald Sport Officer, DCSWP john.mcDonald@dublincity.ie 

Page 75

mailto:aideen.oconnor@dublincity.e
mailto:Alan.morrin@dublincity.ie
mailto:paul.donnelly@dublincity.ie
mailto:john.mcDonald@dublincity.ie


Darren Taaffe Citywide Sport Officer, 

DCSWP 

darren.taaffe@dublincity.ie 

 

Robert Abbey Citywide Sport Officer, 

DCSWP 

robert.abbey@dublincity.ie 

Colette Quinn Development Officer, 

Athletics 

colettequinn@athleticsireland.ie 

Heather Jameson Development Officer Football 

For All  (Disability), North 

City 

heather.jameson@fai.ie 

Carmel 

O’Callaghan 

Active Cities Officer (Dublin 

City) 

Carmel.ocallaghan@dublincity.ie 

Paul Whelan Development Officer, FAI 

(Finglas) 

Paul.whelan@fai.ie 

Neil Keoghan Development Officer, F.A.I. 

(Ballymun/Poppintree) 

neil.keoghan@fai.ie 

Kevin McCleery Development Officer, 

Leinster Rugby. 

Kevin.mccleery@leinsterrugby.ie 

Fintan Mc Allister Development Officer, Cricket Fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie 

Oisín Fagan Development Officer, Boxing oisinfagan@gmail.com 

Aoife Byrne Development Officer, 

Rowing 

Aoife.byrne@getgoinggetrowing.com 

Christine Russell Development Officer, 

Swimming 

christinerussel@swimireland.ie 

 

 

REPORT BY: 

Colin Sharkey  

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing  

colin.sharkey@dublincity.ie 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 76

mailto:darren.taaffe@dublincity.ie
mailto:robert.abbey@dublincity.ie
file:///C:/Users/50580/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/DGLYSV1F/colettequinn@athleticsireland.ie
mailto:heather.jameson@fai.ie
mailto:Paul.whelan@fai.ie
mailto:neil.keoghan@fai.ie
file:///C:/Users/50580/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/DGLYSV1F/Fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
file:///C:/Users/50580/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/DGLYSV1F/noelkarenburke@gmail.com
mailto:colin.sharkey@dublincity.ie


 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 17th October 2023 
 
 Item No: 12 
 

Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report as at 15/09/2023  

 

Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request Statistics 

 

 

 

 

 

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 

 

Stage 1 1 

Stage 2 33 

Stage 3         - 

Stage 4 35 

Stage 5        9 

Appeal         - 

 

General traffic service requests not requiring Statutory Orders. 
Total Non Tag requests received since previous 
report 

4 

Total Non Tag requests currently open on 
Confirm. 

29 

 

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 
Explanation of Stages: 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc 

 
Fergal Mc Kay 
Assistant Staff Officer 
Administration/Transport Advisory Group 
T: 222 3781 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 
 

No. TAG Requests received since previous report  
13 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 
78 

Page 77



Page 1 of 1

Item Enquiry Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

04/10/2023
North West Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/10/2023)
6 Items

1 7034141 SHANLISS GARDENS
(NW)

Dublin 9Parking
Restrictions

request parking restrictions. 0TDRecommended After a site visit, it was observed that some vehicles were blocking the
sight line and causing some blind spots on Shanliss Gardens, at the
junction with Shanliss Road.
To prevent dangerous parking and for health and safety issues, the area
engineer recommends the installation of a Yield Line and a continuous
white centre line at the aforementioned junction.
Under S.I. No. 182/1997 - Road Traffic (Traffic and Parking) Regulations,
1997, section 36 Prohibitions on Parking (2) a vehicle shall not be parked
– ( d ) on a section of roadway with less than 3 traffic lanes and where
traffic sign number RRM 001 [continuous white line] has been provided;
Please note that instances of illegal parking should be reported to Dublin
Street Parking Services, the City Council’s parking enforcement contractor
(Ph: 01-602 2500 or Email parkingenforcement@dublincity.ie), or to the
local Gardaí, as it is a matter for enforcement under the Road Traffic
Regulations.

19/07/2023

2 7034889 SAINT MARGARET'S
ROAD (NW)

Dublin 11Bus Infrastructure BusConnects measures
including Bus Stop markings and
signs.

0InternalRecommended BusConnects measures including Bus Stop markings and signs. 05/09/2023

3 7034907 MCKEE AVENUE
(NW)

Dublin 11Bus Infrastructure BusConnects measures
including Bus stop markings and
signs.

0InternalRecommended BusConnects measures including Bus Stop markings and signs. 06/09/2023

4 7034908 FINGLAS ROAD (NW) Dublin 11Bus Infrastructure BusConnects measures on
Finglas Road and Finglas
Bypass including Bus Stop
markings and signs.

0InternalRecommended BusConnects measures on Finglas Road and Finglas Bypass including
Bus Stop markings and signs.

06/09/2023

5 7034909 MAIN STREET (NW) Finglas,
Dublin 11

Bus Infrastructure BusConnects measures
including Bus Stop signs and
markings.

0InternalRecommended BusConnects measures including Bus Stop signs and markings. 06/09/2023

6 7035114 BALLYMUN ROAD
(NW)

Dublin 9Bus Infrastructure Bus priority measures including
Bus Lane change of hours and
Cycle track change of hours.

0InternalRecommended Bus priority measures: Change Hours of inbound Bus Lane betwen Santry
Avenue and St Mobhi Road to Monday to Sunday 24 Hours. Change
Hours of outbound Bus Lane between St Michael's House  to Gateway
Avenue to Monday to Sunday 24 Hours. Change hours of outbound Cycle
Track between Griffith Avenue and St Michael's House to Monday to
Sunday 07.00-19.00.

21/09/2023

P
age 78



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Logged

Status Report
18/09/2023

78 Items

Status

Page 1 of 3

1 7032884 BALLYGALL ROAD WEST (NW) P&D/Permit Parking [Pre-Check] 04/05/2023 16:36:271

2 7019895 HAZELCROFT ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 09/04/2021 09:10:162

3 7026677 BALLYGALL PARADE (NW) Traffic Calming 13/05/2022 12:52:422

4 11131984 TRF481902579SEAMUS ENNIS ROAD (NW) Bus Stop Marking 28/01/2023 14:12:482

5 7031826 DUNSINK PARK (NW) Traffic Calming 06/03/2023 08:10:272

6 11135123 TRF500763079GROVE PARK ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps 24/03/2023 15:27:472

7 11135131 TRF500802789BALLYGALL CRESCENT (NW) Traffic Calming 24/03/2023 16:53:242

8 7032431 CLANCY ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 04/04/2023 15:04:372

9 11138384 TRF517632339BALLYGALL PARADE (NW) Speed Ramps 20/05/2023 14:44:512

10 7033186 SAINT PAPPIN GREEN (NW) Traffic Calming 22/05/2023 12:05:492

11 7033264 STORMANSTOWN ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 29/05/2023 08:21:092

12 11138831 TRF520248048FINGLAS ROAD (NW) Pedestrian Crossing 31/05/2023 09:55:142

13 7033401 CLONMEL ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 02/06/2023 16:33:122

14 7033423 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) 3.5 Tonne Limit 06/06/2023 09:59:242

15 7033514 BALBUTCHER WAY (NW) TAG General Engineer Query 09/06/2023 10:12:122

16 11139496 RMS524227367CARTON DRIVE (NW) Traffic Calming 15/06/2023 14:19:362

17 11139840 TRF525973500JAMESTOWN ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 22/06/2023 11:25:402

18 11140738 TRF530029888GRIFFITH AVENUE (NW) Mini Roundabout 07/07/2023 19:36:372

19 7034121 FERNDALE AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming 18/07/2023 08:27:192

20 11141812 TRF536147670TOLKA VALE (NW) Traffic Lights (new) 01/08/2023 21:04:322

21 11141904 TRF536695615BALBUTCHER LANE (NW) Speed Ramps 03/08/2023 16:24:362

22 11141906 TRF536697113BALBUTCHER LANE (NW) Traffic Calming 03/08/2023 16:30:262

23 11141992 TRF537315408BALLYGALL PARADE (NW) Coach Parking 07/08/2023 00:14:362

24 11142056 TRF537880100JAMESTOWN ROAD (NW) Pedestrian Crossing 08/08/2023 16:43:572

25 11142211 TRF538917371BALBUTCHER WAY (NW) Stop Sign 13/08/2023 01:23:402

26 7034547 MCKEE ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 15/08/2023 08:16:342

27 11142429 TRF540002780DEAN SWIFT ROAD (NW) Disab Park Bay General 17/08/2023 10:14:482

28 11142983 TRF542104910RATOATH ROAD (NW) Traffic Lights (new) 25/08/2023 16:50:052

Page 79



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Logged

Status Report
18/09/2023

78 Items

Status

Page 2 of 3

29 7034881 BALCURRIS PARK WEST (NW) Traffic Calming 05/09/2023 10:53:192

30 7034912 GLASILAWN ROAD (NW) No Right Turn 06/09/2023 11:55:422

31 11143732 TRF546081096SEAMUS ENNIS ROAD (NW) Left Turn Only Lane 11/09/2023 10:21:452

32 11143781 TRF546266519HAMPTON WOOD DRIVE (NW) Speed Ramps 11/09/2023 18:38:282

33 11143871 TRF546805697CASEMENT ROAD (NW) Yield Sign 13/09/2023 14:22:112

34 11143894 TRF546861912CLUNE ROAD (NW) Double Yellow Lines 13/09/2023 16:48:462

35 7013547 BALLYMUN ROAD (NW) TRAD 30/01/2020 11:22:014

36 7019685 BARRY AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming 29/03/2021 11:07:204

37 7019900 DUNSINK DRIVE (NW) Traffic Calming 09/04/2021 12:18:404

38 7019909 HILLCREST PARK (NW) Traffic Calming 12/04/2021 09:29:004

39 7021999 CEDARWOOD ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps 06/08/2021 10:07:074

40 7022674 SHANLISS AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming 16/09/2021 09:28:114

41 7022717 CARRIG ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 20/09/2021 11:33:084

42 7022964 GRIFFITH ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 05/10/2021 08:56:484

43 7028894 RATHVILLY ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 06/09/2022 14:05:214

44 7029183 CRANOGUE ROAD (NW) Parking Restrictions 21/09/2022 09:00:384

45 7029560 MELLOWES AVENUE (NW) Traffic Calming 11/10/2022 12:15:494

46 7029805 DUNSINK DRIVE (NW) TAG General Engineer Query 24/10/2022 11:10:204

47 7030416 TOLKA VALLEY ROAD (NW) Traffic Lights (new) 24/11/2022 10:59:114

48 11131784 TRF481258288DUNSINK ROAD (NW) Traffic Calming 25/01/2023 20:55:044

49 11135547 TRF503509247GRIFFITH AVENUE (NW) Traffic Lights (new) 31/03/2023 15:14:064

50 11136809 TRF510413047NORTH ROAD (NW) Pedestrian Crossing 25/04/2023 09:27:344

51 11136853 TRF510510206BALLYGALL ROAD WEST (NW) No Parking 25/04/2023 13:10:434

52 11136886 TRF510568333WELLMOUNT ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps 25/04/2023 15:29:194

53 11138243 TRF516748524FINGLAS ROAD (NW) Traffic Lights (new) 17/05/2023 17:11:104

54 7033188 WILLOW PARK GROVE (NW) Yield Sign 22/05/2023 12:16:394

55 11138458 TRF518188780SHANLISS WAY (NW) Double Yellow Lines 22/05/2023 19:50:514

56 7033345 CEDARWOOD GREEN (NW) Double Yellow Lines 01/06/2023 09:11:244

Page 80



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Logged

Status Report
18/09/2023

78 Items

Status

Page 3 of 3

57 7033407 DEAN SWIFT ROAD (NW) Parking Restrictions 06/06/2023 08:46:024

58 7033421 STORMANSTOWN ROAD (NW) TAG General Engineer Query 06/06/2023 09:16:014

59 11139133 TRF522424057MCKELVEY AVENUE (NW) Children Crossing Sign 08/06/2023 12:07:594

60 11139208 TRF522784355TOLKA VALLEY ROAD (NW) No Parking 09/06/2023 16:53:344

61 7033599 CRANOGUE ROAD (NW) Stop Sign 14/06/2023 12:54:034

62 7033806 BARRY ROAD (NW) Double Yellow Lines 26/06/2023 15:05:054

63 7033858 GLASNEVIN PARK (NW) Traffic Calming 29/06/2023 11:14:354

64 11140536 TRF529150935SAINT PAPPIN ROAD (NW) Speed Ramps 04/07/2023 20:02:284

65 7034141 SHANLISS GARDENS (NW) Double Yellow Lines 19/07/2023 12:29:174

66 7034889 SAINT MARGARET'S ROAD (NW) Bus Infrastructure 05/09/2023 17:04:574

67 7034907 MCKEE AVENUE (NW) Bus Infrastructure 06/09/2023 10:52:524

68 7034908 FINGLAS ROAD (NW) Bus Infrastructure 06/09/2023 10:57:524

69 7034909 MAIN STREET (NW) Bus Infrastructure 06/09/2023 11:03:194

70 7023950 SANDYHILL GARDENS (NW) Traffic Calming 02/12/2021 09:22:465

71 7029575 GLASNEVIN DRIVE (NW) Bus Infrastructure 12/10/2022 10:35:425

72 7030451 SANTRY AVENUE (NW) No U Turn 25/11/2022 09:23:325

73 7030603 GRIFFITH ROAD (NW) Stop Sign 05/12/2022 10:20:065

74 7030608 CEDARWOOD ROAD (NW) Yield Sign 05/12/2022 12:35:145

75 7031698 FITZMAURICE ROAD (NW) Load Bay Amend Operational
Hrs

22/02/2023 11:23:365

76 7031700 SANDYHILL GARDENS (NW) Disab Park Bay Residential 22/02/2023 12:17:305

77 7032202 SEAMUS ENNIS ROAD (NW) Bus Infrastructure 21/03/2023 16:11:315

78 7033814 HILLCREST PARK (NW) Double Yellow Lines 27/06/2023 14:56:235

Page 81


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 19th September 2023
	2 Questions to the Area Manager
	3 Finglas Area Report, Pat Teehan, Area Manager
	6 Notification of proposed variation no.4 to the Dublin City Development Plan 2022-2023 relating to SDRA 3 - Finglas Village Environs and Jamestown Lands to incorporate the approved Jamestown Master Plan 2023
	7 Ballymun Area Office Report, Jackie O'Reilly, Area Manager
	8 With reference to the proposed grant of a Short Term Business Letting of two amalgamated office units at ground floor level, Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun Dublin 11.
	9 Community Grants Scheme and Informal Adult Education Scheme 2023
	10 Public Domain Report, Robert Ingram Public Domain Officer
	11 Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Report
	12 Traffic Service Request, Status Report
	13 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting
	North West Status B Sep


